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1-3 Be it remembered that at the stated term of the United 
States court in the Indian Territory, southern district, at 

Ardmore, begun and holden at Ardmore on the 5th day of Oc­
tober, 1896, and.on the 40th day of said term, to wit, the 8th day 
of December, 1896—present and presiding, the Hon. Constantine B. 
Kilgore, judge—the following, among other, proceedings were had, 
to wit: 

In re Cases of Citizenship Appeal. 

It is ordered by the court that the following rules be, and the 
same are hereby, adopted as rules of practice and procedure in ap­
peals to this court from the decision of the tribal authorities or the 
United States commission to the five civilized tribes, appointed to 
treat with said tribes, which are provided for by act of Congress, 
upon questions arising upon applications made by persons to be 
enrolled as citizens of the respective tribes of Indians. 

The party desiring to appeal from the decision of any such tri­
bunal or commission may, within sixty days after notice of the 
rendition of the decision thereon, file with the clerk of this court an 
application or petition, duly verified, setting out the style of such 
case; that the same has been decided adversely to the party filing 
the application for appeal, and praying that the said commission or 
tribunal be notified of said appeal and ordered to forward the papers 
to the clerk of this court, together with a duly certified transcript of 
all judgments and entries made and rendered by said tribunal or 
commission in said.cause; whereupon the clerk shall issue a notice 
to said tribunal or commission, notifying that an appeal has been 
taken, and to immediately forward all papers in said cause, together 
with a duly certified copy of all judgments and entries made and 
entered by said tribunal, to the clerk of this court. 

The application for citizenship, amendments thereto and answer 
thereto, and amendments thereto shall constitute the plead-

4 ingsof all of the parties in this court, and no pleadings shall 
be held invalid for want of form. In accordance with the 

practice before the commission, any party aggrieved may present 
and prosecute an appeal herein for the use and benefit of the entire 
family, including the wife, lineal descendants, and collateral kindred, 
to the United States court for the southern district of the Indian 
Territory. Where one or more of the applicants for citizenship 
reside in the southern district of the Indian Territory, the appeal 
shall be taken to the United States court for the southern district, 
and if all the applicants are non-residents of the Indian Territory, 
then said appeal shall be taken to the United States court held in 
the division in this Territory wherein the nation of the tribe to 
which said applicants claim to belong is situated. The clerk of 
the court shall file said papers and docket the case in a separate 
book to be kept for that purpose and known as the ' 'Cit izenship 
docket," and the clerk shall also keep a separate record book in 
which shall be recorded the proceedings of this court in reference to 
citizenship cases, to be known as the " Citizenship record." The 
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party desiring to appeal from any decision rendered by an Indian 
tribunal or the commission shall, at the time he files his notice of 
appeal with the clerk of the United States court, also lodge with 
said clerk evidence of the fact that notice of some kind has been 
served upon the opposite party or his attorney in the case that said 
application would be made. The notice need not be formal, but 
shall be required to be only so drawn as to inform the opposite party 
of the intention to appeal from said decision. After the expiration 
of the ten days after such service, waiver of appearance, or the filing 
of such papers with the clerk where notice of appeal is given before 
the commission, the case shall stand ready for trial and the court 

shall be deemed open at all times for the purpose of hearing 
5 and determining such cases, and either party to said action 

may introduce such other evidence as they may have in sup­
port of their cause of action or defense, regardless of whether the 
same was presented to the commission or not. 

The court may, in its discretion or when agreed to by the parties, 
refer all papers in these cases to a special master, with instructions 
to take the testimony and report upon the law and facts presented 
in the record, pleadings, and service. Such reports shall be made 
at the earliest time practicable, not exceeding thirty days from the 
time each cause is referred to said master, and either party shall 
have ten days after the report of said master is filed to file excep­
tions thereto, both as to questions of law and fact, and after five 
days from the filing of the exceptions to said report the cause shall 
stand ready for trial before this court on the exceptions presented 
to the master's report, and may be taken up and finally passed upon 
by the court. 

The special master shall be allowed as compensation $5 for each 
cause heard, provided not more than one day's time is devoted to 
said cause, and in case more than one day's time is consumed he 
shall have $10 and no more as his compensation for hearing the 
same. 

Should the United States commission or the tribunal created by 
the tribal authorities refuse to permit any party to a proceeding to 
establish citizenship, and, desiring to appeal from the decision of such 
tribunal or commission, to withdraw the original papers for the pur­
pose of filiug the same in this court, such party may, upon petition 
to this court, setting forth the fact of such refusal, obtain an order 
of the court commanding such commission or tribunal or the clerk 
or the secretary thereof to surrender such papers and a transcript 
of the entries made therein as heretofore provided. 

Appeals in citizenship cases must be taken only at Ardmore, and 
for the purpose of hearing and determining such cases the 

6 court at that place shall be deemed open at all times. 
Any case when submitted as required by these rules may, 

in the discretion of the court, be transferred by the court, on the 
application of either party, to either Ryan, Chickasha, Purcell, or 
Paul's Valley for hearing and determining when the court is in 
session at such places, but the decision of the court, when rendered, 
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and all papers in the case shall be filed with the clerk at Ardmore 
(Court Journal 9, page- 283, '4, '5). 

7 And thereafterwards, on the 3rd day of February, 1897, 
was filed with the clerk of this court an application for en­

rollment in said cause ; which said application is in words and 
figures as follows, to wit: 

DANIEL M C D U F F I E ET AL , P l a i n t i f f s , ^ A p p ] i c a t i o n f o r E n r o n . 

CHICKASAW NATION, Defendant. I m e n t a s C i t i z e D -

To the honorable Dawes commission—Hon. Henry L. Dawes, chair­
man : 

Comes now Daniel McDuffie, one of the plaintiffs in the above 
action, together with his wife, Elizabeth McDuffie, and their chil­
dren, R. H., Callie H., Mattie Lee, and Casey E. McDuffie; J. M. 
Crawford and his wife, Mrs. M. J. Crawford, formerly M. J. Mc­
Duffie; Mrs. Amanda Jarvas, formerly McDuffie, and her husband, 
George Jarvis, and their children, Sarah Ann, Mary Jane, and Nancy 
Jarvas ; W. M. McCarley and his wife, Nancy, formerly Nancy Mc­
Duffie, and their children, James, Eli, Sidney, Macon, Sarah, Wal­
ter, Effie, Mary, Ernest, and Nancy McCarley, and respectfully 
shows to the court that on the — day of , 189-, the above plain­
tiffs filed with the court of claims of the Chickasaw nation, Indian 
Territory, their petition setting up the fact of their citizenship as 
Chickasaw Indians; that at the February term the said court, 1895, 
said case came on for a hearing upon the petition of plaintiffs, and, 
after the introduction of testimony by plaintiffs, said case was finally 
disposed of as to said plaintiffs, and the following certificate was 
issued : 

Certificate of Citizenship. 

DANIEL M C D U F F I E "j 
vs. > Suit for Citizenship. 

CHICKASAW NATION, j 

8 OFFICE COURT OF CLAIMS, CHICKASAW NATION, 
TISHOMINGO, I. T., February 14th, 1895. 

This day this cause came on for hearing. After examining the 
evidence produced by the plaintiffs the court was of the opinion that 
the following parties to the suit are Chickasaws and are entitled to 
the rights of Chickasaw citizens, to wit: Daniel McDuffie and his 
wife, Elizabeth McDuffie, and their children, R. H., Callie H., Mattie, 
Lee, and Casey E. McDuffie ; J. M. Crawford and his wife, M. J. 
Crawford ; Mrs. Amanda Jarvis and her children, Sarah Ann, Mary 
Jane, and Nancy Jarvis ; William McCarley and his wife, Nancy 



4 THE CHIKOASAW NATION VS. DANIEL MCDUFFIE ET AL. 

McCarley, and their children, Sarah Ann, Eli, Sidney, Macon, 
Walter, Effie, Mary, Ernest, and Nancy McCarley. 

Given under our hands this day and date above written. 
(Signed) C. A. BURRIS, Chairman, 

W. H. BOURLAND, 
J. BROWN, Committee. 

Attest: R. H. NOCHOLS, Clerk 

That since the issuance of said certificate said plaintiffs have 
enjoyed all the rights and privileges of Chickasaw Indians by blood, 
and that at this time said plaintiffs still enjoy all of the rights, 
privileges, and immunities as if they were full-blood Chickasaw In­
dians; that plaintiffs, together with their families, are now resi­
dents of the Chickasaw nation, Indian Territory, and had been 
long prior to the filing of this suit; that they and each of them 
have complied with all of the laws of the Chickasaw nation since 
the issuance of said certificate by said court of claims. Plaintiffs 
further state that at the time said certificate was issued, or shortly 
thereafter, said case was sent to the legislature by said court of claims 
for its approval ; that when said case came before the legislature, 

upon the motion of the attorney general, this case, together 
9 with several others, was passed upon adversely by said legis­

lature without their ever having reviewed the testimony in the 
case or being advised as to the facts in the case. Plaintiffs Daniel 
McDuffie, Mrs. M. J. Crawford, Mrs. Amanda Jarvis, and Mrs. 
Nancy McCarley respectfully state that they are Chickasaw Indians 
by blood, and that they are direct descendants of Nancy Frazier, a 
Chickasaw Indian who resided in the State of Mississippi prior to 
the removal of the Chickasaw tribe of Indians to the now Indian 
Territory. 

Wherefore plaintiffs submit their application in this case, together 
with the testimony taken before the court of claims of the Chicka­
saw nation, and ask that they be enrolled as Indians in the Chicka­
saw tribe. 

ARTHUR WALCOTT, 
Attorney for Plaintiffs. 

I, J. M. Crawford, one of the plaintiffs in the above cause, first 
being duly sworn, on oath say that I believe the facts and allega­
tions contained in the foregoing application are true. 

J. M. CRAWFORD. 

Subscribed and sworn to before me on this the 20 day of August, 
A. D. 1896. 

T. C. BRIDGMAN, 
[SEAL.] Notary Public, Southern District, Indian Territory. 

Indorsed: " No. 4. Before the honorable Dawes commission— 
Hon. Henry L. Dawes, chairman. Daniel McDuffie et al. vs. Chick­
asaw Nation. Application for enrollment as citizens. Filed Sept. 
9, 1896. A. S. McKennon, com'r. Filed February 3rd, 1897. 
Joseph W. Phillips, clerk." 
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10 Before the Honorable Commission to the Five Civilized 
Tribes. 

In the Matter of the Application for Enrollment in the Chickasaw 
Nation of DANIKL MCDUFFEE et al. 

Exception- to Application Filed before Dawes Commission. 

Now comes the Chickasaw Nation, by its attorneys, and respect­
fully shows to this honorable commission that the application herein 
is insufficient in law. 

Wherefore it prays that said application be dismissed. 
Second. For further special exception the Chickasaw Nation re­

spectfully shows to this commission that the evidence produced by 
the applicaut- is insufficient to show any claim of citizenship in the 
Chickasaw tribe of Indians. 

Wherefore it prays that said application be dismissed. 
Third. For further special exceptions the Chickasaw Nation shows 

that said application is insufficient, in that it shows that said appli­
cant- has not complied with the laws of said nation, and therefore is 
not entitled to any of the rights, privileges, and immunities as such 
citizen-. 

Wherefore it prays that said application be dismissed. 
T H E CHICKASAW NATION, 

By Its Attorneys. 

11 And thereafterwards, on the 3rd day of February, 1897, 
was filed with the clerk of this court the answer in said cause ; 

which said auswer is in words and figures as follows, to wit: 

Before the Honorable Commission to the Five Civilized Tribes. 

In the Matter of the Application of DANIEL M C D U F F I E et al. for En­
rollment in the Chickasaw Nation. 

Now comes the Chickasaw Nation, by its attorneys, and without 
waiving any exception heretofore taken to the application filed 
herein and without consenting to, but denying, the jurisdiction of 
this honorable commission to pass upon a question of citizenship in 
the Chickasaw tribe of Indians, presents this its answer to said ap­
plication and respectfull3r represents: 

First. The Chickasaw Nation alleges that none of the applicants 
herein are citizens of the Chickasaw nation, either by blood or inter­
marriage, and avers the fact to be that all of the applicants are now 
and always have been citizens of the United States and not entitled 
to recognition as members of the Chickasaw tribe or nation of In­
dians. In support of allegations herein contained, the Chickasaw 
Nation respectfully refers this honorable commission to the exhibits 
hereto attached. 

Wherefore it prays that the application herein be dismissed and 
all of the applicants be rejected, and will ever prav, etc. 

W. B. JOHNSON, 
Att'y for C. N. 
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Indorsed : " No. 4. Before the honorable commission to the five 
civilized tribes. In the matter of the application of Daniel Mc-
Duffie et al. for enrollment in the Chickasaw nation. Answer. 
Filed October 28th, 1896. H. N. Jacoway, sec'y. Filed Februarv 
3rd, 1897. Jos. W. Phillips, clerk." 

12 And thereafterwards, on the 3rd day of February, 1897, 
was filed with the clerk of this court the amended answer in 

said cause; which said amended answer is in words and figures as 
follows, to wit: 

Before the Honorable Commission to the Five Civilized Tribes. 

In the Matter of the Application for Enrollment in the Chickasaw 
Nation of DANIEL M C D U F F I E et al. 

Now comes the Chickasaw Nation, by its attorneys, and without 
waiving any exception heretofore taken to the application filed 
herein and without consenting to, but denying, the jurisdiction of 
this honorable commission to pass upon a question of citizenship in 
the Chickasaw tribe of Indians, presents this its answer to said ap­
plication and respectfully represents: 

First. The Chickasaw Nation alleges that the Nancy Frazier re­
ferred to by the applicants only had two children, one of whose 
names was Winchester Colbert and the other's name was Leader; 
that none of these applicants are descendants of her; that she was 
the only Chickasaw by that name; that her son Leader is yet 
living in the Chickasaw nation, and all the applicants herein are 
United States citizens; that the committee appointed by the Chick­
asaw legislature to pass upon claims to citizenship were not author­
ized to issue certificates, but only to hear evidence; that these 
applicants were rejected by the legislature because, as it appeared, 
the committee had only taken the evidence of the applicants them­
selves, supported by the testimony of a few persons whose reputa­
tions for truth and veracity were known to be bad and who could 
be induced to swear to anything through friendship or a small sum 
of money. The Chickasaw Nation hereto attaches exhibits in sup­
port of the allegations herein contained, which it makes a part of 

its answer. 
13 Wherefore it prays that the application be dismissed, and 

will ever pray, etc. 
T H E CHICKASAW NATION, 

By Its Attorneys. 

Indorsed : " No. 4. Before the honorable commission to the five 
civilized tribes. In the matter of the application of Daniel Mc­
Duffie et al. for enrollment in the Chickasaw nation. Amended 
answer. Filed Oct. 31, 1896. H. M. Jacoway, sec'y. Filed Feb­
ruary 3rd, 1897. Jos. W. Phillips, clerk." 

14 And thereafterwards, to wit, on the 13 day of Feb'y, 1897, 
was filed in the office of the clerk of the United States court, 
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southern district of Indian territory, at Ardmore, the following 
judgment from the Dawes commission: 

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR, 
COMMISSION TO THE F I V E CIVILIZED TRIBES, 

VINITA, INDIAN TERRITORY, NOV. 10, 1896. 

DANIEL MCDUFFEE ET A I , 1 106. Filed Sept. 9th, 1896. Answer 
vs. > Filed. Application Denied. A. 

CHICKASAW NATION. j Walcott, Ardmore, I. T. 

I, H. M. Jacoway, Jr., secretary, do hereby certify that the above 
and foregoing is a true and correct copy of Chickasaw Record C, 
page 19, of the commission to the five civilized tribes. 

Given under my hand and official signature this 29 dav of Jau'y, 
1897. 

H. M. JACOWAY, JR. , Secretary, 
By HENRY STROUP. 

The above and foregoing judgment is indorsed in words and fig­
ures as follows, to wit: Daniel McDuffee et al. vs. Chickasaw Nation. 
Filed Feb. 3rd, 1897. Jos. W. Phillips, clerk. 

15 In the United States Court for the Southern District of the 
Indian Territory, at Ardmore. 

DANIEL MCDUFFEE ET AL., Plaintiff-, "j Petition for Appeal to the 
vs. V U. S. Dist. Court for the 

CHICKASAW NATION, Defendaut. ) Southern Dist., Ind. Ter. 

To the Honorable C. B. Kilgore, judge : 
Comes now the applicants herein, —feeling themselves aggrieved 

by the decision of the Dawes commission in the above cause, hereby 
prays an appeal from said decision to this honorable court. 

A R T H U R WALCOTT, 
Attorney for Applicants. 

The foregoing appeal is allowed this 12 day of Dec, 1896. 
C. B. KILGORE, Judge. 

16 In the United States Court in the Indian Territory, Southern 
District, at Ardmore. 

DANIEL MCDUFFEE ET AL. 
vs. 

CHICKASAW NATION. 
Notice of Appeal. 

To the Hon. Henry L. Dawes, chairman of the commission of the 
United States to the.five civilized tribes of Indians. 
S I R : You are hereby notified that an appeal has been granted in 

the matter of the application of Daniel McDuffee et al. to be enrolled 
as members of the Chickasaw tribe of Indians from your commis­
sion to the United States court for the southern district in the Indian 
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Territory, at Ardmore. You are therefore notified and ordered to 
immediately forward to the clerk of this court all of the original 
papers filed, used, and considered in said cause by your commission, 
together with a duly certified copy of all orders, judgments, and 
entries made and entered by you in the trial and consideration of 
said cause. 

Witness the Hon. C. B. Kilgore, judge of said court, and the seal 
thereof, at Ardmore, Indian Territory, this 12 day of Dec, 1896. 

[SEAL.] JOS. W. P H I L L I P - Clerk 

17 And thereafterwards, to wit, on Tuesday, February 1st, 
1898, present and presiding aforesaid, the following further 

proceedings in said cause were had, to wit: 

DANIEL MCDUFFEE ET AL., Plaintiff-, 
vs. 

CHICKASAW NATION, Defendant. 
No. 4. Plea to Jurisdiction. 

Comes now the defendant, The Chickasaw Nation, and respectfully 
avers that this court has no jurisdiction to hear this cause, for the 
reason that the act creating the Dawes commission and the right of 
this court to. pass upon causes appealed to it from said commission, 
determining the question of citizenship in the Chickasaw nation, is 
unconstitutional and void ; that said act gives this defendant no 
right to cross-examine the witnesses of the applicant-, and the same 
is contrary to the treaty of 1866, entered into by the United States 
Government and the Chickasaw nation, by which said Chickasaw 
nation reserved the right to pass upon all matters concerning said 
tribe and all civil and political rights of the individual members 
thereof; that said treaty is still in full force and effect and was at 
the time of the act of Congress creating the commission to the five 
civilized tribes and authorizing this court to pass upon appeals 
from the same was enacted. 

II. 

Because said act deprives the Chickasaw nation and the individual 
members thereof of property without due process of law. 

III . 

Because said act is class legislation, in that the same deprives 
either party of an appeal, as in other cases, to the higher courts of 
the Territory and of the United States. 

IV. 

Because the jurisdiction extended to this court has been limited 
to controversies between citizens of different tribes or between citi­
zens or members of the tribe of Indiaus and a United States citizen, 
and expressly reserving to the Indians controversies arising between 
themselves. 
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V. 

Because if this court determines that the applicant is a member 
of said nation, it is then passing upon rights between citizens of 
the same tribe of Indians, and no judgment thereon can be entered 
for want of jurisdiction in this court. 

Wherefore the defendant prays that said cause be dismissed for 
the above reasons, and that it go hence without day, etc. 

Attorney for Chickasaw Nation. 

The above and foregoing is indorsed in words and figures as fol­
lows, to wit: " Daniel McDuffee etal, plaintiff-, vs.Chickasaw Nation, 
defendant. Plea to jurisdiction. Filed in open court M'ch 14th, 
1898. C. M. Campbell, clerk." 

18 And thereafterwards, on the 23rd day of July, 1897, was 
filed with the clerk of this court the report of the master in 

chancery in said cause; which said report is in words and figures 
as follows, to wit: 

United States Court, Southern District, at Ardmore,Indian Territory. 

DANIEL M C D U F F I E ET AL. ) 
vs. V Master's Report. 

CHICKASAW NATION. j 

The applicants in. this case allege that they are the lineal descend­
ants of one Nancy Frazier, who was a Chickasaw Indian and re­
sided in the State of Mississippi prior to the removal of the Chicka­
saw tribe to the Indian Territory; that Nancy Frazier married one 
McDuffie, and of this union there were born one son named Norman 
McDuffie, who married a white woman named Dorothy Gillis, and 
of this union there ivas born Nancy McCauly, Daniel McDuffie, 
Mrs. Amanda Jarvis; they and their descendants constitute the ap­
plicants in this case. The applicants in this case, on the — day 
of , 189-, filed an application for citizenship in the Chickasaw 
nation before the court of claims at Tishomingo. Said court was 
established by an act of the Chickasaw legislature in December, 
1894. It appears that the said court entered up a judgment and 
issued certificates of citizenship, declaring the applicants to be In­
dians by blood. The Chickasaw Nation filed an answer before the 
Dawes commission, denying the Indian citizenship as well as the 
Indian blood of the applicants, and offered testimony in support of 
their answer. There are two propositions insisted on by the appli­
cants in this case: First, that there is a valid judgment, final in its 

nature, by a court of competent jurisdiction, declaring the 
19 applicants in this case to be citizens and members of the 

Chickasaw nation; second, that the evidence in this case 
shows that the applicants are Indians by blood and are entitled to 
enrollment. If both or either of these propositions are correct the 
applicants are entitled to enrollment. 

2—476 
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We will now examine the first proposition. In December, 1894, 
the Chickasaw legislature created a tribunal called the court of 
claims. The first section of the act provided that the court shall 
consist of three judges, appointed by the governor, and that said 
judges shall not be under the age — forty; also provides that said 
court shall try the citizenship of all persons claiming Indian rights 
whose rights are disputed. The second section provides for the 
term of holding the court. The third provides for the organization 
of the court and for the compensation of the judges and officers. 
The fourth also provides for the organization of the court. The 
fifth provides for the manner in which testimony shall be produced. 
The seventh provides that the chairman of the court shall make a 
complete transcript of the proceedings of said court in all cases to 
be submitted to the legislature for their approval or rejection. It 
also provides that the acts of the legislature on the report shall be 
final. The eighth and ninth sections provide for the cost of the 
proceedings, and also prescribe the duty of the district attorney. It 
is insisted by argument of counsel that the court of claims herein 
provided for is a court of final jurisdiction, and that their judgment 
is final. We do not think that this can be maintained, for the rea­
son that the act creating the court provided that the chairman of 
the court shall make a complete transcript of the proceedings in all 
cases which come before that tribunal to be submitted to the legis­
lature for the approval or rejection by that body of the judgment of 
the court of claims, and that the rejection or approval of the legisla­
ture shall be final. It is evident from the seventh section of the act 
that the Chickasaw legislature did not intend to create a tribunal of 
final jurisdiction to try causes of Chickasaw citizenship,for the reason 
that they reserve to themselves the jurisdiction in all cases to ap­

prove or disapprove of the acts of the court, and before the acts 
20 of the court could be pleaded as res adjudicata in a case it is 

necessary to show that the legislature either rejected or ap­
proved the report in the particular case. It does not appear either 
from the evidence or the allegations that the report of the court of 
claims was ever approved in this case by the legislature, and I find 
the law to be that before the applicants can rely upon the judgment 
of the court of claims it is necessary for them to show the court 
that the report or judgment relied upon by applicants was approved 
by the Chickasaw legislature. This is not shown by the testimony. 
It does not appear that the testimony or answer or application that 
the Chickasaw legislature ever did take final action, such as was 
anticipated by the act, in the rase of the applicant. It does not 
appear, however, at a subsequent date that the Chickasaw legisla­
ture passed an omnibus act repealing all the certificates of citizen­
ship issued by said court of claims. This act of the legislature of 
the Chickasaw nation was not in conformity to the act providing 
for the approval or rejection of the report. I therefore find that 
there was no valid judgment by court of competent jurisdiction 
adjudicating the rights of the applicants; that neither the appli­
cants nor Chickasaw Nation can rely upon the proceedings before 
the court of claims and the legislature as an adjudication of the rights 

THE CHICKASAW NATION VS. DANIEL MCDUFFIE ET AL. 11 

of the applicants in this case. Had there have been a report either 
in favor of or against the applicants by the court of claims to the 
legislature and had said body had either approved or rejected the 
report, it then could have been relied upon as a final adjudication 
of the matter; but it does not even appear that the court of claims 
ever made any report to the legislature, much less a rejection or 
approval, as provided for in the act. The action of the court of 
claims was incorrect, but the applicants, if admitted, must rely upon 
their Indian blood. The Chickasaw Nation has offered proof to 
show that the applicants are not Indians by blood. This proof, like 
the proof of applicants, is of a very unsatisfactory character. The 

proof of the applicants amount- to little more, if any, 
21 than a mere family tradition of Indian blood. The proof of 

both parties is of such an unsatisfactory and irresponsible 
character that it is not necessary to examine it in detail, and inas­
much as the burden of proof is upon the applicants to show by 
succinct testimony their Chickasaw blood, and this is not done, I 
therefore recommend that the application be denied. 

W. H. L. CAMPBELL, 
Master in Chancery. 

Indorsed : " No. 4. Daniel McDuffie el al. vs. Chickasaw Nation. 
Master's report. Filed July 23rd, 1897. Joseph W. Phillips, clerk." 

22 And thereafterwards, on the 19th day of November, 1897, 
to wit, the 5th day of said term, present and presiding afore­

said, there was filed with the clerk of this court a motion to refer 
to master in this cause; which said motion is in words and figures 
as follows, to wit: 

In the United States Court for the Southern District of the Indian 
Territory, at Ardmore. 

DANIEL M C D U F F I E ET AL. 1 
vs. I No. 4. Motion. 

T H E CHICKASAW NATION, j 

Comes now the plaintiffs, by their attorneys, and asks that this 
cause be re-referred to the master in chancery for his finding on the 
facts upon the evidence introduced herein, and alleges in support 
hereof that the former master, the Hon. W. H. L. Campbell, was 
unduly prejudiced against these plaintiffs, and that — a former term 
of this honorable court, at Ryan, and prior to the time this cause 
was referred to the said Campbell, he prosecuted voluntarily one of 
the plaintiffs herein for an alleged offense pending in the said Ryan 
court, which fact was unknown to the attorneys herein until the 
said master had passed on and reported in this cause, and later, 
upon being interrogated by one of the attorneys herein, confessed in 
terms his prejudice against these plaintiffs. Wherefore plaintiffs 
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ask that this cause be re-referred to the Hon. John Hiukle, master 
in chancery, for his report and findings herein. 

ARTHUR WALCOTT, 
CRUCE, CRUCE & CRUOE, 

Att'ys for Pl't'fs. 

Motion sustained and ordered referred to master in chancery, 
John Hinkle. 

HOSEA TOWNSEND, Judge. 

Indorsed : " No. 4. Daniel McDuffie et al. vs. Chickasaw Nation. 
Filed in open court November 19th, 1897. C. M. Campbell, clerk." 

23 Be it remembered that at a regular term of the United 
States court in the Indian Territory, southern district, at 

Ardmore, begun and holden on Monday, the 15th day of November, 
1897, and on the 5th day of said term, to wit, on Friday, November 
19th, 1897—present and presiding, the Hon. Hosea Townsend, 
judge—the following, among other, proceedings were had, to wit: 

DANIEL MCDUFFY ET AL. j 

vs. VNo. 4. 
T H E CHICKASAW NATION. ) 

Comes now the plaintiffs herein and move the court to re-refer 
this cause to the master in chancery. The court, being fully advised 
in the premises, doth grant said motion. 

It is therefore ordered that this cause be, and the same is hereby, 
re-referred to the master in chancery. It is further ordered that 
this cause is referred to John Hinkle, master (vol. A, Citizenship 
Record, page 105). 

* * * * * * * 

And on the 61st day of said term, to wit, on the 12th da}' of March, 
1898, present and presiding aforesaid, the following further pro­
ceedings in said cause were had, to wit: 

DANIEL MCDUFFY ET AL. ) 

vs. > No. 4. 
T H E CHICKASAW NATION, j 

Master's report filed. 
(Vol. "A," Citizenship Record, page 305.) 

24 And thereafterwards, to wit, on the 12th day of March, 
1898, there was filed with the clerk of this court the report of 

the master in chancery in this cause; which said report is in words 
and figures as follows, to wit: 
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DANIEL M C D U F F I E ET AL., Plaintiff-, i 
vs. V Master's Report. 

T H E CHICKASAW NATION, Def. j 

To the Honorable Hosea Townsend, judge : 
The plaintiff Daniel McDuffie and his wife, Elizabeth McDuffie, 

and their children, R. H., Callie H , Mollie Lee, and Casey E. Mc­
Duffie; J. M. Crawford and his wife, M. J. Crawford ; George Jarvis 
and his wife, Amanda Jarvis, and their children, Sarah Ann, Mary 
Jane, and Nancy Jarvis ; W. M. McCarley and his wife. Nancy Mc-
Carley, and their children, James, Eli, Sidney, Macon, Sarah, Walter, 
Effie, Mary, Ernest, and Nancy McCarley, all claim to be Chickasaw 
Indians and lineal descendants of Nancy Prazier, a full-blood Chicka­
saw Indian, and pray to be enrolled as such. 

The defendant denies that plaintiffs are Chickasaw Indians or en­
titled to enrollment, and alleges that said Nancy Frazier, under 
whom plaintiffs claim their right, only had two children, one of 
whose names is Winchester Colbert a nd the other is name- Leader; that 
none of these applicants are descendants of the said Nancy Frazier, 
and that she is the only Chickasaw Indian by that name it ever 
knew. He further alleges that the court created by the Chickasaw' 
legislature who issued the certificates of citizenship to the plaintiffs 
herein had no right to issue the same; that the Chickasaw legis­
lature was the only legal tribunal authorized to enroll Chickasaw 
Indians. 

It appears that Jthe material part of plaintiffs' testimony 
25 was taken upon an application for enrollment before a court 

created by the Chickasaw legislature, and that said testimony 
was used before the Dawes commission upon the application of 
plaintiffs for enrollment. 

It appears that plaintiffs' attorneys rely upon the certificates of 
citizenship given plaintiffs by the said Indian court, as well as the 
testimony taken before said court and since. The six first sections 
of the act creating said court provides for the court and its organi­
zation. The seventh section provides that the chairman of said 
pourt shall make a complete transcript of their proceedings, to be 
submitted to the legislature for their approval or rejection, and that 
their decision shall be final. The legislature to pass on said appli­
cations should have met the first Monday in September, 1895, but 
did not meet until October of that year. They then rejected all the 
applicants that had obtained certificates from said court. 

I don't attach much importance to the issuance of said certificates 
by said court. In my opinion it only shows that they were satis­
fied that the applicants were citizens. Their acts were extrajudi­
cial and therefore do not bind the Chickasaw nation, nor entitle 
the applicants to enrollment. 

1 have directed my search for light to the confused mass of testi­
mony taken before said Indian court, together to testimony taken 
before me since then. A large part of the testimony taken since is 
impeaching testimony. The plaintiffs offer in support of their ap­
plication the testimony of William Simpson, who says he is a Chick. 
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asaw Indian by blood and seventy-two years of age; that he knew 
Nancy Frazier in the State of Miss., and knew her to be a Chickasaw 
Indian by blood ; that she married and had five children, one of 
whom married Archie McDuffie; that they had several children 
born unto them, one of whom was named Norman McDuffie; that 
Norman McDuffie married and had several children born unto him. 
James Frazier, a witness for plaintiffs, says that the above testimony 

of William Simpson is true in every detail. J. S. Wolfe, a 
26 witness for the plaintiff-, says that he knew Nancy Frazier in 

Miss. ; that she was a full-blood Chickasaw Indian ; that she 
had a daughter who married Archie McDuffie. Nancy McCarley 
says that she is a daughter of Dorothy McDuffie and a lineal de­
scendant of the said Nancy Frazier. Amanda Jarvis says she is a 
daughter of Norman McDuffie and a lineal descendant of the said 
Nancy Frazier, who was a full-blood Chickasaw Indian. Mrs. J. 
M. Crawford, who is about 46 years of age, says that her grand­
mother's name was Nancy Frazier, and witness connects all appli­
cants herein as descendants of said Nancy Frazier. The applicants 
fully establish the fact that they are legal descendants of Norman 
McDuffie by testimony that is not contradicted. Now, the only 
question for me to decide by the testimony is whether or not this 
Norman McDuffie is a descendants of the said Nancy Frazier. The 
defendants contend that said Norman McDuffie is not a legal de­
scendant of said Nancy Frazier, and offer as proof the testimony of 
one Ben Kemp, who says that he is a Chickasaw Indian and knew 
Nancy Frazier and knows that the applicants herein are not de­
scendants of hers. This witness makes an impeaching affidavit, in 
which he impeaches the testimon}' of J. S. Wolfe and William 
Simpson, who testify in this case, and Fred Humphrey, Win. 
Fisher, John Kemp, and Patsy Hall, who did not testify in this case, 
were also impeached by said Ben Kemp. In my opinion, he has 
weakened his own testimony; he knows too many persons whose 
reputation for truth and veracity is bad. The reputation of the 
witness Simpson is fully sustained by other witnesses, who testify 
to his good reputation for truth and veracity. 

I am of the opinion from the testimony of Simpson and Wolfe 
and from the testimony of the family tradition that all the appli­
cants herein are the legal descendants of the said Nancy Frazier, 
who was a Chickasaw Indian, except the said Elizabeth McDuffie, 
J. M. Crawford, George Jarvis, Wm. M. McCarley, who are inter­
married citizens, and that they are each and all of them entitled to 

enrollment as such. 
27 I therefore recommend that a decree be entered directing 

that they be enrol-ed upon the rolls of the Dawes commission 
as members of the Chickasaw tribe of Indians. 

JOHN HINKLE, 
Master in Chancery. 

Indorsed: " No.4. Daniel McDuffie vs. Chickasaw Nation. Mas­
ter's report. Filed March 12th, 1898. C. M. Campbell, clerk." 
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28 Be it remembered that at a regular term of the United 
States court in the Indian Territory, southern district, at 

Ardmore, begun and holden on Monda}r, the 15th day of Novem­
ber, 1897, and on the 32nd day of said term, to wit, Tuesda}', De­
cember 21st, 1897—present and presiding, the Hon. Hosea Town-
send, judge—the following, among other, proceedings were had, to 
wit: 

Order. 

In re Order of Court Allowing Substitution of Papers in Citizenship 
Cases—DANIEL MCDUFFEE et al. 

The papers in a majority of the citizenship cases pending in this 
court having been burned and destroyed by fire on the morning of 
the 16th inst., it is ordered that the applicants in each and all of 
the said cases have until the 10th day of January, A. D. 1898, to 
substitute all their papers in the various cases, and that W. B. 
Johnson, attorney for the Chickasaw nation, have until February 
1st, 1898, to substitute the papers of said nation (vol. A, Cstizenship 
Record, pages 128 and 129). 

29 Opinion by the Court. 

In the Southern District, Indian Territory. 

TOWNSEND, J. 

In re INDIAN CITIZENSHIP CASES. 

COURT : I have examined with some care the treaties between the 
United States Government and the Choctaws and Chickasaws in 
order that I might become familiar with all the negotiations. The 
first treaties were made in 1786 separately with each tribe or nation, 
as they were called. Not, however, until 1820 was the subject 
mentioned of taking any land west of the Mississippi river. On 
October the 18th, 1820, near Doak's Stand, on the Natchez road, a 
treaty was entered into between the Choctaws and the Government 
of the United States, in which it was stated in the preamble the 
purpose was " to promote the civilization of the Choctaw Indians 
by the establishment of schools amongst them, and to perpetuate 
them as a nation, by exchanging, for a small part of their land 
here, a country beyond the Mississippi river, where all who live by 
hunting and will not work may be collected and settled together; " 
whereupon, in part consideration of the ceding of a part of their 
reservation then existing, the Government ceded " a tract of country 
west of the Mississippi river, situate between the Arkansas and Red 
rivers," and by its boundaries being substantially the country now 
embraced in the Choctaw and Chickasaw nations. In 1825 another 
treaty was entered into between the Choctaw nation and the Gov­
ernment, by which the Choctaws ceded to the Government all the 
land ceded to them in 1820, " lying east of a line beginuing on the 
Arkansas, one hundred paces east of Fort Smith, and running 
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thence due south to Red river," in consideration for which the 
Government undertook to remove certain settlers, citizens of 

30 the United States, from the west to the east side of said line 
and to pay certain money consideration for a series of years 

and certain other provisions not material for consideration in this 
connection. 

On September 27th, 1830, another treaty was entered into between 
the Choctaws and the Government, in the preamble to which it is 
recited that ' ' the State of Mississippi has extended the laws of said 
State to persons and property within the chartered limits of the 
same, and the President of the United States has said that he cannot 
protect the Choctaw people from the operation of these laws. Now, 
therefore, that the Choctaws may live under their own laws in peace 
with the United States and the State of Mississippi, they have de­
termined to sell their lands east of the Mississippi." 

It is provided that in consideration that the United States "shall 
cause to be conveyed to the Choctaw nation a tract of country west 
of the Mississippi river, in fee-simple to them and their descendants, 
to inure to them while they shall exist as a nation and live on it," 
they "cede to the United States the entire country they own and 
possess east of the Mississippi river, and they agree to remove be­
yond the Mississippi river." 

Under the 14th article it is provided that each head of a family 
who desires to remain shall have a reservation, and then states that 
" persons who claim under this article shall not lose the privilege of 
a Choctaw citizen, but if they ever remove are not to be entitled to 
any portion of the Choctaw annuity." 

On the 22nd day of June, 1855, a treat}' was entered into between 
the Choctaws, Chickasaws, and the Government, and this was the 
first treaty at which all three were represented. Its purpose was 
declared to be " a readjustment of their relations to each other and 
to the United States," and for a relinquishment by the Choctaws of 

" all claim to any territory west of one hundredth degree of 
31 west longitude." In the first article of said treaty it is pro­

vided that "pursuant to act of Congress approved May 28th, 
1830, the United States do hereby forever secure and guarantee the 
lands embraced within the said limits to the members of the Choc­
taw and Chickasaw tribes, their heirs and successors, to be held in 
common." 

On the 28th of April, 1866, another treaty was entered into be­
tween the Choctaws, Chickasaws, and the United States. This treaty 
seems to have been necessitated by the changed condition of affairs 
that resulted from the war of the rebellion and attempts to arrange 
civil government for the Choctaws and Chickasaws and an allot­
ment of their lands in severalty. It provides for the survey and 
platting of the lands, and that when completed the maps, plats, etc., 
shall be returned to a land office that was to be established at Boggy 
Depot for the inspection by all parties interested, and that a notice 
shall be given for a period of ninety days of such return by the 
legislative authorities of said nations, or, upon their failure, by the 
register of the land office; and in article 13 it is provided that the 
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notice shall be given not only iu the Choctaw and Chickasaw na­
tions, " but by publication in newspapers printed in the States of 
Mississippi and Tennessee, Louisiana, Texas, Arkansas, and Ala­
bama, to the end that such Choctaws and Chickasaws as yet remain 
outside of the Choctaw and Chickasaw nations may be informed 
and have opportunity to exercise the rights hereby given to resi­
dent Choctaws and Chickasaws : Provided, that before any such 
absent Choctaw or Chickasaw shall be permitted to select for him 
or herself or others, as hereinafter provided, he or she shall satisfy 
the register of the land office of his or her intention, or the inten­
tion of the party for whom the selection is to be made, to become 
bona fide residents in the said nation within five years from the time 

of the selection ; and should the said absentee fail to remove 
32 into said nation and occupy and commence an improvement 

on the laud selected within the time aforesaid, the said selec­
tion shall be cancelled and the laud thereafter shall be discharged 
from all claims on account thereof." 

This is the last treaty entered into between the Choctaws and the 
Chickasaws and the United States; but as late as December 24th, 
1889, the council of the Choctaw nation passed a resolution calling 
upon Congress to defray the expense of moving the Choctaws in 
Mississippi and Louisiana to the Choctaw nation. 

It was not until 3 832 that the Chickasaws took any steps by 
treaty to move west. On October 20th, 1832, a treaty was entered 
into between the Chickasaws and the United States. In the pre­
amble it is set forth that " being ignorant of the language and the 
laws of the white- man they cannot understand or obey them. 
Rather than submit to this great evil they prefer to seek a home in 
the West, where they may live and be governed by their own laws." 

In the first article of said treaty it is provided that " the Chicka­
saw nation do hereby cede to the United States all the land which 
they own on the east side of the Mississippi river, including all the 
country where they at present live and occupy." 

It is provided by said treaty that their lands shall be surveyed 
and sold and the proceeds held for their benefit, and they would 
hunt for a country west of the Mississippi river, and iu the 4th 
article it is provided : " But should they fail to procure such a coun­
try to remove to and settle on, previous to the first public sale of 
their country here, then, and in that event, they are to select out of 
the surveys a comfortable settlement for every family in the Chick­
asaw nation, to include their present improvements;" and in the 
supplementary articles entered into October 22nd, 1832, it is pro­
vided " that whenever the nation shall determine to move from 

their present country, that every tract of land so reserved iu 
32J the nation shall be given up and sold for the benefit of the 

nation " 
On May 24, 1834, another treaty was entered into between the 

Chickasaws and the United States, making some different pro­
visions about the sale of their lands, but no change in the general 
purpose. 

On January 17, 1837, a convention and agreement was entered 
3-476 
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into between the Chickasaws and the Choctaws, subject to the ap­
proval of the President of the United States, by the terms of which 
the Chickasaws agree to pay the Choctaws the sum of $530,000.00 
for the territory that they now occupy. Excepting a treaty between 
the Chickasaws and the United States, adopted June 22nd, 1852, in 
regard to the disposition of their lands east of the Mississippi river, 
we are brought down in the history of the treaties of the Chicka­
saws to the treaty of 1855, heretofore mentioned, between the Choc­
taws, Chickasaws, and the United States. 

In all these various treaties, solemnly entered into, there is not 
one line or word to indicate that the Choctaws and Chickasaws who 
did not remove to the western country were not Choctaw or Chicka­
saw citizens and members of their respective tribes; on the other 
hand, in the treaty of 1830 between the Choctaws and the United 
States, it is expressly provided that those who remained should 
" not lose the privilege of a Choctaw citizen," " but if they ever re­
move are not to be entitled to any portion of the Choctaw annuity." 

When it was supposed that the lands would be allotted in sever­
alty under the treaty of 1866, it was expressly provided that notice 
should be published in the papers of several States that absent 
Choctaws and Chickasaws might come in and obtain the benefits of 
the allotment, and absentees were to be allowed five years to occupy 
and commence improvements, and all that was necessary was to 
satisfy the register of the land office that that was their intention. 

The allotment did not take place, but if they had not come 
33 in they were only to lose their allotment of land. It did not 

make them any the less Choctaws or Chickasaws or members 
of the Choctaw and Chickasaw tribes. 

I t has been said that they could not be put upon the roll as citi­
zens and members of those tribes unless they lived upon the land 
within the Choctaw or Chickasaw nation. I submit that the action 
of the Choctaw and Chickasaw nations themselves, when making t i e 
treaty of 1866, do-n't bear out that view ; and if they were Choctaws 
and Chickasaws in 1866, what has occurred to change their relations 
to those tribes? I have heard of nothing whatever. 

It is said that the land was held in common, and certainly some 
of the tenants in common in possession could hold the possession 
for all their cotenants in common. The bulk of the nation living 
in the territory ceded and maintaining the tribal government or 
nation certainly met every requirement of residence, and was a com­
pliance in all respects with the treaty stipulations of living on the 
land. 

I shall hold that non-resident Choctaws and Chickasaws who have 
properly filed their application and established their membership 
of the tribes shall be admitted to the roll as citizens. 

Who is an intermarried citizen and who is an adopted citizen of 
the Choctaw and Chickasaw nations? 

Article 38 of the treaty of 1866 is as follows: 
"Every white person, who, having married a Choctaw or Chicka­

saw, resides in the said Choctaw or Chickasaw nations, or who has 
been adopted by the legislative authorities, is to be deemed a mem-
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ber of said nation, and shall be subject to the laws of the Choctaw 
and Chickasaw nations, accordiug to his domicile, and to prosecu­
tion and trial before their tribunals, and to punishment accordiug 
to their laws in all respects, as though he was a native Choctaw or 
Chickasaw." 

Does this article apply to future marriages and adoptions 
34 or only those prior to its adoption ? By article 26 of said 

treaty it is provided, i'u regard to the rights to take laud in 
severalty, as follows: 

Article 26. 
" The right here given to Choctaws and Chickasaws, respectively, 

shMl extend to all persons who have becr/ioe citizens by adoption 
or intermarriage of either of said nations, or who may hereafter 
become such." 

Under section 7 of the general provisions of the Chickasaw con­
stitution adopted August 16th, 1867, both as originally adopted 
and as amended, said sections can have but one construction, and 
that, that they regarded the said 38t'> article as binding on their 
future action, and if this is so it would not be within the power of 
either the Choctaw or Chickasaw nations to pass or adopt any con­
stitution or law in violation of said article, or that would take away 
the rights, privileges, or immunities that has attached to any white 
person under and by virtue of its provisions. 

Under the constitution of the Chickasaws, above referred to, sec­
tion 10 of the general provisions gives the legislature power to admit 
or adopt as citizens, of said nations " such persons as may be accept­
able to the people at large." 

This authority had been exercised frequently by the legislature 
of both nations, as I am informed, prior to the adoption of said 
treaty as well as subsequent to its adoption. 

On October 19th, 1876, the legislature of the Chickasaws passed 
an act in relation to marriage between citizens of the United States 
and a member of the Chickasaw tribe or nation of Indians. The 
second section, among other things, provides: " Hereafter no mar­
riage between a citizen of the United States and a member of the 

Chickasaw nation shall confer any right of citizenship, or 
35 any right to improve or select lands within the Chickasaw 

nation, unless such marriage shall have been solemnized in 
accordance with the laws of the Chickasaw nation." 

This act was amended September 24th, 1887, in some particulars, 
but the above-quoted provision was retained. 

Amongst all civilized nations it is conceded to be a right that 
each nation, and in the United States that each State, can exercise 
and determine by their laws the requirements to be observed in 
solemnizing marriages ; but marriage among civilized nations does 
not confer citizenship. Under the Choctaw and Chickasaw law it 
does; besides, it is supposed to carry with it certain property rights. 
The general rule among civilized nations is that a marriage good 
where solemnized is good everywhere, but in some States, where 
marriage is prohibited between certain races of people, they have 
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not been recognized, though they were lawful where solemnized. 
I think it is within the power of the Choctaw and Chicka'saw nations 
to say by legislation that before a white person shall become one of 
their citizens, with all the privileges of one, they shall be married 
according to the forms and requirements of their laws, and that 
such legislation is not in violation of the 38th article of the treaty 
of 1866 ; but when a white person has married a Choctaw or Chick­
asaw according to their laws, and resides in the Choctaw or Chick­
asaw nations, he is in all respects " as though he was a native 
Choctaw or Chickasaw," and his rights under the treaty attaches, 
and it is not within the power of the Choctaw or Chickasaw nation 
to take the same away by legislation or otherwise. It has been 
said that when adoption takes place by an act of their legislature 
the same power that granted can takeaway. I doubt this proposi­
tion if by the adoption treaty rights have attached, and I am 
firmly of the opinion that property rights that have attached under 
the treaty cannot be taken away, and that only political rights 

could thus be abrogated. 

36 Along the lines herein indicated the citizenship cases pend­
ing in this court will be disposed of. 

HOSEA TOWNSEND, Judge. 

37 And on the 62nd day of said term, to wit, the 14th day of 
March, 1898, present and presiding aforesaid, the following 

further proceedings in said cause were had, to wit : 
DANIEL MCDUFFY ET AL. ~) 

vs. > No. 4. Judgment. 
T H E CHICKASAW NATION, j 

This day this cause coming on to be heard upon the pleadings, 
exhibits, proof, master's report, and exceptions filed thereto by the 
Chickasaw Nation, and the court, upon the hearing of said case, is of 
the opinion, and therefore adjudges, that the report of the master in 
chancery filed herein be, and the same is hereby, confirmed in all 
respects, and the court, being sufficiently advised upon the whole 
case, doth order, adjudge, and decree that the plaintiffs and appli­
cants Daniel McDuffy, Mattie Lee McDuffy, Amanda Jarvis, Nancy 
Jarvis, Eli McCorley, Sarah McCorley, Mary McCorley, R. A. 
McDuffy, Cassie E. McDuffy, Sarah Ann Jarvis, Nancy McCorle}', 
Sidney'McCorley, Walter McCorley, Earnest McCorley, Callie H. 
McDuffy, Mrs. M. J. Crawford, Mary Jane Jarvis, James McCorley, 
Macon McCorley, Efffe McCorley, Nancy McCorle\% each and all be 
admitted as members of the Chickasaw tribe of Indians by blood, 
and that they have ail the rights, privileges, and immunities as 
such. It is further ordered, adjudged, and decreed that the appli­
cants Elizabeth McDuffy, wife of Daniel McDuffy; J. M. Crawford, 
husband of M. J. Crawford ; M. L. McCorley, husband of Nancy 
McCorley; George Jarvis, husband of Amanda Jarvis, each and all 
be admitted as members of the Chickasaw tribe of Indians by inter­
marriage, and that they each have all the rights, privileges, and 
immunities as such. 
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The clerk of this court is hereby ordered to transmit a certified 
copy of this judgment to the commission to the five civilized tribes 
of Indians, whieh said commission is hereby directed to place the 
names of each and all of the above-named parties upon the rolls of 

citizenship made out by it for the Chickasaw nation as mem-
38 bers of said Chickasaw tribe of Indians in the way and 

manner herein indicated. To this judgment the Chickasaw 
Nation excepts (vol. "A," Citizenship Record, page 311). 

39 And thereafterwards, to wit, on March 14th, 1898, present 
and presiding aforesaid, the following further proceedings in 

said cause were had, to wit: 

DANIEL MCDUFFEE, Plaintiff, "j 
vs. VNo. 4. Motion for a New Trial. 

CHICKASAW NATION, Defendant. ] 

Now comes the defeudant, Chickasaw Nation, and respectfully 
moves the court to set aside the judgment heretofore rendered in 
this cause, for the following reasons, to wit: 

First. Because the judgment was contrary to law. 
Second. Because the same was contrary to the evidence. 
Wherefore it prays that said judgment be set aside and held for 

naught. 
CHICKASAW NATION. 

The above and foregoing is indorsed in words and figures as fol­
lows, to wit: " Daniel McDuffee etal. vs. Chickasaw Nation." " Mo­
tion for a new trial." " Filed in open court M'ch 14th, 1898." " C. M. 
Campbell, clerk." 

40 And thereafterwards, to wit, on March 14th, 1898, piesent 
and presiding aforesaid, the following further proceedings in 

said cause were had, to wit : 

DANIEL MCDUFFEE ET AL., Plaintiff-, 
vs. 

CHICKASAW NATION, Defendant. 

No. —. Order Overruling 
Plea to the Jurisdiction and 
Motion for a New Trial. 

On this 7th day of March, 1898, came on to be heard the defend­
ant's plea to the jurisdiction of the court herein and its motion for 
a new trial, and the court, after hearing said plea and motion, is of 
the opinion that the same should be aud is in all things overruled 
and denied ; to which judgment of the court the defeudant duly 
excepted. 

41 And at the April, 1898, term of said court, to wit, on the 
11th day of July, 1898—present and presiding, the Hon. 

Hosea Towusend, judge—the following, among other, proceedings 
were had, to wit : 

• H i 
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DANIEL M C D U F F E E ET AL. 
vs. 

CHICKASAW NATION. 
No. 4. Order of Substitution. 

It appearing to the court by the affidavit of William B. Johnson, 
attorney for the Chickasaw Nation, that some of the papers in the 
hereinafter-styled cause were destroyed by fire, and that the same 
were not substituted prior to the judgment rendered in this court, 
it is ordered that the said record be supplied in order that the rec­
ord of appeal may be in all things complete. 

(Signed) HOSEA TOWNSEND, Judge. 

(Court Journal, vol. 11, pp. 114, 115, and 116.) 

No. 4. Application for Appeal. 

DANIEL MCDUFFEE ET AL 
vs. 

CHICKASAW NATION. 

Thereupon the said defendant in said cause, the said Chickasaw 
Nation, deeming itself aggrieved by the said decree made and en­
tered of record on the 14 day of March, 1898, appeals from said 
order and decree to the Supreme Court of the United States for the 
reasons specified in the assignment of errors filed herewith, and it 
prays that this appeal may be allowed and that a transcript of the 
record, proceedings, and papers upon which said order was made, 
duly authenticated, may be sent to the Supreme Court of the United 
States. 

(Signed) W. B. JOHNSON, 
Solicitor for Defendant. 

This 11th day of July, 1898. 

42 And thereafterwards, on the 50th day of said term, to wit, 
on the 11th day of July, 1898, was filed with the clerk of this 

court the assignment of errors in this cause; which assignment of 
errors is in words and figures as follows, to wit: 

In the United States Court for Southern District of Indian Territory, 
at Ardmore. 

DANIEL MCDUFFEE ET AL., Plaintiffs,) 
vs. V Assign men 

CHICKASAW NATION, Defendant. j 
t of Errors. 

The defendant in this action, in connection with its petition for 
appeal, makes the following assignment of errors which it avers 
occurred upon the trial of the cause, to wit: 

First. The court erred in holding that the act of Congress cre­
ating a commission to pass upon the citizenship of applicants in 
the Chickasaw nation and the right to appeal to said court was 
constitutional. 

Second. The court erred in overruling the plea to the jurisdiction 
of the Dawes commission and said court to pass upon the citizen­
ship of the applicants herein. 
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Third. The court erred in holding that the laws, customs, and 
usages of the Chickasaw nation did not control and govern the 
admission of the applicants to citizenship. 

Fourth. The court erred in holding that the Chickasaw nation 
did not have a right to pass a law relative to citizenship in the 
Chickasaw nation when said law in any w7ay modified or changed 
the treaty of the Chickasaw nation with the United States. 

Fifth. The court erred in holding that the applicant- herein, who 
had failed to comply with the laws of the Chickasaw nation regu­
lating his citizenship herein, ivas still entitled to all the rights and 
immunities of a citizen- and entitled to be enrolled as such. 

Sixth. The court erred in making a general order requiring the 
substitution of all the papers in the Indian citizenship cases 

43 during the same term of court at which said papers had been 
destroyed by fire. 

Seventh. The court erred in making a general order requiring 
the substitution of papers in all citizenship cases by the plaintiffs 
and defendant within sixty days after the destruction of the same. 

Eighth. The court erred in permitting the substitution of papers 
in this cause in the next term of the court after the destruction of 
the same without thirty days' previous notice of the applicant- to the 
defendant. 

Ninth. The court erred in holding that hearsay testimony to prove 
nationality was admissible as pedigree testimony, which testimony 
was introduced and in substance tended to show the Indian citizen­
ship of the plaintiff-. 

Tenth. The court erred in holding that the hearsay testimony of 
a witness was admissible as pedigree when the party whom the wit­
ness had heard speak was still alive, which said testimony was in­
troduced as tending to show the Indian citizenship of the plaintiffs. 

Eleventh. The court erred in admitting as pedigree testimony 
the hearsay evidence of persons not intimately acquainted, by either 
relationship or association, with the persons whom the said witness 
claim-to have heard speak, which evidence was introduced as tend­
ing to show the Indian citizenship of the plaintiffs. 

Twelfth. The court erred in holding as pedigree testimony hear­
say evidence of a witness who was not related or intimately asso­
ciated wTith the speaker, who was himself not shown to be so con­
nected with the parties whom he had heard speak of their Indian 
ancestry, which evidence was introduced as tending to show the In­
dian citizenship of the applicant-. 

Thirteenth. The court erred in making the general rule that new 
evidence could be introduced upon appeal from the Dawes commis­
sion, which character of evidence was introduced and in substance 
tended to show the Indian citizenship of the plaintiff-. 

Fourteenth. The court erred in granting a decree upon insufficient 
evidence. 

44 Fifteenth. The court erred in holding that all the inter­
married applicants herein are entitled to Indian citizenship 

by virtue of marriage with the applicants herein who claim by 
blood. 
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Sixteenth. The court erred in referring this case to a master in 
chancery. 

Seventeenth. The court erred in overruling the defendant's excep­
tions to the master's report. 

Eighteenth. The court erred in granting this decree upon the 
substituted pleadings and evidence of the plaintiff-alone, the plead­
ings aud evidence of both the plaintiff- and defendant having been 
destroyed. 

Nineteenth. The court erred in granting a decree upon the sub­
stituted report of the master in chancery alone. 

Twentieth. The court erred in overruling the defendant's motion 
for a new trial. 

Twenty-first. The court erred in holding that these plaintiffs, if. 
they ever had any right as citizens of the Chickasaw nation, could 
reside in one of the State- of the United States, intermarry with 
United States citizens, exercise the right of suffrage as a citizen- of 
the United States, claim all privileges due such citizens, and not 
thus utterly expatriate themselves from citizenship in the Chickasaw 
nation. 

Twenty-second. The court erred in admitting these applicants 
who have never resided in the Indian Territory and who were not 
so residing at the time of their application to the Dawes commis­
sion. 

Twenty-third. The court erred in entering a decree for the plain­
tiff- in this case. 

WM. B. JOHNSON, 
Attorney for Chickasaw Nation. 
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Indorsed : " No. 4 
signment of errors. 
Campbell, clerk." 

45 

Daniel McDuffie vs. Chickasaw Nation. As-
Filed in open court July 11th, 1898. C. M. 

And thereafterwards, to wit, on the 11th day of July, 1898, 
there was filed in the clerk's office of the United States court, 

southern district, at Ardmore, the following appeal bond; which 
bond is in words and figures as follows, to wit: 

DANIEL MCDUFFEE ET AL., Plaintiff-, 
vs. 

CHICKASAW NATION, Defendant. 
\ No. 4. Bond on Appeal. 

Know all men by these presents that we, the Chickasaw Nation, 
as principal, and R. M. Harris, gov., and Richard McLish and 
Walter Colbert, as sureties, are held and firmly bound unto the 
plaintiff-, Daniel McDuffee et al., in the full and just sum of 100 
dollars, to be paid to the said plaintiff-, their certain attorneys, ex­
ecutors, administrators, or assigns; to which payment, well and 
truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, and ad­
ministrators, jointly and severally, by these presents. 

Sealed with our seals and dated this 11th day of July, in the year 
of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and ninety-eight. 

Whereas lately, at a court of the United States for the southern 

district of the Indian Territory, in a suit pending in said court be­
tween Daniel McDuffee et al., plaintiff-, and The Chickasaw Nation, 
defendant, a decree was rendered against the said Chickasaw Nation, 
and the said Chickasaw Nation having obtained an appeal and filed 
a copy thereof in the clerk's office of the said court to reverse the 
decree in the aforesaid suit, and a citation directed to the said Daniel 
McDuffee et al., citing and admonishing — to be and appear at a 
session of the Supreme Court of the United States, to be holden at 
the city of Washington, in the month of October next: 

Now, the condition of the above obligation is such that if the 
said Chickasaw Nation shall prosecute said appeal to effect and an­
swer all damages and costs if he fail to make this said plea good, 
then the above obligation is to be void; otherwise to remain in full 
force and effect. 

CHICKASAW NATION. 
R. M. HARRIS, Gov. 
RICHARD McLISH. 
WALTER COLBERT. 

Sealed and delivered in the presence of— 
FRED C. CARR. 
P H I L BARRETT. 

Approved by— 
HOSEA TOWNSEND, 

Judge of the United States Court for the Southern 
District of the Indian Territory. 

The above and foregoing bond is endorsed in words and figures 
as follows, to wit: "Daniel McDuffee et al. vs. Chickasaw Nation. 
Defendant's bond. Filed in open court July 11th, 1898. C. M. 
Campbell, clerk." 

46 The foregoing claim of appeal is allowed and bond for costs 
fixed at $100. 

(Signed) HOSEA TOWNSEND, Judge. 

This 11th day of July, 1898. 

(Court Journal, vol. 11, pp. 114, 115, and 116.) 

DANIEL M C D U F F E E ET AL. 1 
vs. >No. 4. Order. 

CHICKASAW NATION. j 

Thereupon, upon motion of William B. Johnson, attorney for the 
Chickasaw Nation, it is ordered that the defendant have ninety days 
in which to prepare and file its bill of exceptions. 

(Signed) HOSEA TOWNSEND, Judge. 

(Court Journal, vol. 11, pp. 114, 115, and 116.) 

4—476 
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DANIEL MCDUFFEE ET AL. | N Q 4 Q r d e r G r a n t i n g E x t e D s i o n o f 

CHICKASAW NATION. j T i m e f o r R e t u r u D a ^ 

Thereupon comes William B. Johnson and moves the court that 
the return day of the citation in this cause be extended sixty days, 
and it appearing to the court that owing to the great number of 
cases to be appealed by the Chickasaw Nation it would be impossi­
ble to immediately perfect the appeal by said nation in all of said 
cases, it is ordered that the return day of said citation be extended 
sixtv days. 

(Signed) HOSEA TOWNSEND, Judge. 

(Court Journal, vol. 11, pp. 114, 115, and 116.) 

47 T H E UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ss : 

To Daniel McDuffie et al., Greeting : 

Whereas the Chickasaw Nation has lately appealed to the Supreme 
Court of the United States from a decree lately rendered in the 
United States court for the southern district of the Indian Territory, 
made in favor of you, the said Daniel McDuffie et al., and has filed 
the security required by law : 

You are therefore cited to appear before the Supreme Court, at 
the city of Washington, on the first day of the fall term next, to do 
and receive what may appertain to justice to be done in the prem­
ises. 

Given under my hand, at the city of Ardmore, in the southern dis­
trict of the Indian Territory, this 11th day of July, in the year of 
our Lord one thousand eight hundred and ninety-eight. 

HOSEA TOWNSEND, 
Judge of the United States Court for the 

Southern District of the Indian Territory. Original. 

I hereby, this 20 day of July, 1898, accept due personal service of 
this citation on behalf of Daniel McDuffie et al., appellees. 

ARTHUR WALCOTT, 
Solicitor for Appellees. 

[Endorsed :J 4. Daniel McDuffie et al. v. Chickasaw Nation. Ci­
tation. Original. Filed in open court Jul-11,1898. C. M. Camp­
bell, clerk. 

48 And thereafterwards, on the 11th day of July, 1898, was filed 
with the clerk of the United States court for the southern 

district of the Indian Territory the following affidavit for substitu­
tion of papers, to wit : 
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DANIEL MCDUFFEE ET AL., Plaintiff-, | A f f i d a v i t for Substitution of 
vs. > 

CHICKASAW NATION, Defendant. j 
Papers. 

Comes now William B. Johnsou, attorney for the Chickasaw Na" 
tion, who, being duly sworn, upon oath deposes and says: 

That in the above numbered and styled cause a great many of 
the papers were destroyed by fire and have not been substituted, 
and that said record is incomplete and the appeal cannot be per­
fected without the same are supplied. 

WM. B. JOHNSON. 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 9th day of July, 1898. 
[SEAL.] P H I L BARRETT, 

Notary Public. 

The above and foregoing affidavit is endorsed in words and fig­
ures as follows, to wit: " No. 4. Daniel McDuffee et al. vs. Chicka­
saw Nation. Affidavit for substitution of papers. Filed in open 
court July 11th, 1898. C. M. Campbell, clerk." 

49 And thereafterwards, to wit, on the 29th day of Sept., 1898, 
was filed with the clerk of this court the bill of exceptions in 

said cause; which said bill of exceptions is in words and figures as 
follows, to wit: 

In the United States Court for Southern District of Indian Territory, 
at Ardmore. 

No. 4. Bill of Exceptions. 
DANIEL MCDUFFEE ET, AL., Plaintiffs, 

vs. 
CHICKASAW NATION, Defendant. 

Be it remembered that on the 9th day of September, 1896, Daniel 
McDuffee et al. filed with the Dawes commission, at Vinita, Indian 
Territory, their application for citizenship in the Chickasaw nation. 

That thereafter, to wit, on the 28th day of October, 1896, the Chick­
asaw Nation filed with the said Dawes commission its answer to the 
application of the said Daniel McDuffee et al., and thereafter, to wit, 
on the 31st day of October, 1896, filed its amended answer to said 
application, in both of which answers the Chickasaw Nation, after 
objecting to and denying the jurisdiction of said Dawes commission 
to pass upon a question of citizenship in the Chickasaw tribe of In­

dians, did answer in detail the allegations of the applicant?. 
50 That thereafter, to wit, on the 10th day of November, 1896, 

the said Dawes commission denied the application of the said 
Daniel McDuffee et al. for citizenship in the Chickasaw nation. 

That thereafter, to wit, on the 15 day of Dec, 1896, the said ap­
plicants, Daniel McDuffie et al., did appeal from the judgment of 
said Dawes commission to the United States court for the southern 
district of the Indian Territory, at Ardmore, said appeal being duly 
perfected upon notice to the Chickasaw Nation. 



28 
THE CHICKASAW NATION VS. DANIEL MCDUFFIE ET AL. THE CHICKASAW NATION VS. DANIEL MCDUFFIE ET AL. 29 

Be it further remembered that on the 8th day of Dec, 1896, an 
order was made referring said cause to a master in chancery ; to 
which order of the court the defendant objected, and, said objection 
being overruled, the defendant then and there in open court duly 
excepted and still excepts. 

Be it remembered that on the 7 day of July, 1897, this cause, 
having been referrred, as aforesaid, to a master in chancery, was J 
heard before said master, who found that the applicants were not J 
entitled to citizenship in the Chickasaw tribe of Indians. 

Be it further remembered that thereafter, to wit, on the 19th day 
of November, 1897, upon motion of plaintiffs, the above cause was 
again referred to another master in chancery ; to which order off 
the court the defendantobjected, and, said objection beingoverruled, j 
the defendant then and there in open court duly excepted and still j 
excepts. 

That thereafter, to wit, on the 12th day of March, 1898, this cause 
came on to be heard before the master in chancery, he being the 
second one in this case, and upon hearing of the cause the said 
master found that all of the applicants were entitled to citizenship 
in the Chickasaw nation ; to which finding the defendant then and 
there excepted, said exceptions being in words and figures as follows, 
to wit: 

In the United States Court for Southern — of Indian Territory, at 
Ardmore. 

DANIEL MCDUFFEE ET AL., Plaintiffs 1 ^ 
vs. ' [ -Ex 

CHICKASAW NATION, Defendant. 
ceptions to Master's 

Report. 

51 Comes now the Chickasaw Nation, by its attorney, and re­
spectfully excepts to the report made b}' the master in this] 

cause, because: ^ ^ ^ ^ 
First, Same is not supported by the evidence. 
Second. The decision is not in conformity with the law in force 

governing such cases in the Chickasaw nation, Indian Territory. 
Wherefore it prays that said report be disapproved and the appli­

cants rejected. 

W. B. JOHNSON, 
Attorney for Chickasaw Nation. 

That thereafter, to wit, on the 14 day of March, 1898, when said 
exceptions came on to be heard by the court, the same were over-i 
ruled ; to which the defendant objected, and, said objection being 
overruled, the defendant in open court then and there duhy ex­
cepted and still excepts. 

Be it further remembered that on the 14 day of March, 1898, the 
defendant filed its plea to the jurisdiction of the Dawes commission 
to pass upon a question of citizenship in the Chickasaw tribe of In ­
dians and of this court to pass upon this cause upon appeal from 
said Dawes commission for reasons stated in said plea: which plea 

was overruled by the court ; to which the defendant objected, and, 
said objection being overruled, the defendant then and there in open 
court duly excepted and still excepts. 

Be it further remembered that on the 7 day of July, 1897, when 
said cause came up before said first-named master in chancery for 
hearing, and on the 12th day of March, 1898, when the same was 
heard before the second master in chancery, certain testimony was 
introduced which was not introduced before the Dawes commission, 
but was taken after appeal was perfected from the decision of said 
Dawes commission ; to the introduction of which testimony, for the 
above reason, the defendant objected, and, said objection being over­

ruled, the defendant excepted and still excepts. 
52 Be it further remembered that on the 14th day of March, 

1898, the above cause came on to be heard before the Honor­
able Hosea Townsend, judge of the above court; whereupon came 
the plaintiffs, by their attorneys, and the defendant, by its attorney, 
and the following, among other, proceedings were had, to wit: 

The plaintiffs introduced the following testimony : 

Court of Claims, Feb. Term, 1895. 

To the Hon. Colbert A. Burris, chairman of the court of claims : 
The petition of Daniel McDuffe- and his wife, Elizabeth McDuffee, 

and their children, R. H., Callie H., Mattie Lee, and Casey E. Mc­
Duffee; Mr. J. M. Crawford and his wife, Mrs. M. J. Crawford, for­
merly M. J. McDuffee; Mrs. Amanda Jarvis, formerly McDuffee, 
and her children, Sarah Ann, Mary Jane, and Nancy Jarvis; Mr. 
W. M. McCarty and his wife, Nancy, formerly McDuffee, and their 
children, James, Eli, Sydney, Macon, Sarah, Walter, Effie, Mary 
Earnest,and Nancy McCarty, would respectfully represent unto your 
honor that they are the legal descendants of Nancy Frazier, a full-
blood Chickasaw woman, who emigrated to this country from Mis­
sissippi, and who married Arclin McDuffee, and who had several 
children by McDuffee, one of whom was named Norman McDuffee, 
who was the father of Daniel McDuffee and his sisters, Mrs. Craw­
ford, Mrs. Jarvis, and Mrs. McCarty, and therefore pray your honor 
to investigate the claim of citizenship in the Chickasaw nation agree­
able to the laws of the Chickasaw nation, and if found from the 
evidence produced to be entitled to the rights of citizens that you 
award them the rights of citizens under the laws of the Chickasaw 
nation. 

All of which is respectfully submitted. 
Feb., 1895. 

(Signed) H. F. MURRAY, 
Atfy for Applicants. 

53 Deposition of W. M. Simpson. 

My name is W. M. Simpson; I am 72 years old, and live near 
Goodland, I. T. 

Ques. Did you know Nancy Frazier in Mississippi; and, if so, 
was she a Chickasaw Indian ? 



30 
THE CHICKASAW NATION VS. DANIEL MCDUFFIE ET AL. 

Ans. I knew Nancy Frazier in Mississippi, and I knew she was a 
Chickasaw Indian by blood. 

Ques. Did Nancy Frazier leave any children ; and, if so, what 
were their names and where did they live? 

Ans. Nancy Frazier had five children (5); their names were 
Henry Frazier, Tom Frazier, Nancy Frazier, Polly Frazier, and 
Charles Frazier. They lived in Yellow, Bersby county, Miss. 

Ques. Did you know Archie McDuffie; and, if so, who did he 
marry ? 

Ans. I knew Archie McDuffee. He married Nancy McDuffee, the 
daughter of Nancy Frazier aforesaid. They—Archie McDuffee and 
Nancy Frazier, his wife—had several children, one of whom wa 
named Norman McDuffee. Said Norman McDuffee married an 
had children. I do not recollect the names of their children. 

Ques. Did Nancy Frazier or any of her descendants emigrate t 
the Chickasaw nation? If so, when? 

Ans. Yes. They emigrated to the Chickasaw nation about 18351 
or 1837. 

his 
WILLIAM x SIMPSON. 

mark. 

(Signed) 

T H E INDIAN TERRITORY, 

2nd Division. , ^ ^ _ @^H 

I, A. J. Walker, a notary public within and for the Indian Terri­
tory, do certify that the foregoing deposition of William Simpson 
was taken before me and was read to and subscribed by him in my 
presence at the time mentioned in the caption, the said William -

Simpson being first sworn by me that the evidence he should • 
54 give in the action should be the truth and nothing but the 

truth, and that his statements were reduced to writing by me 
in his presence, no other person being present at this examination. 

Given under mv hand and seal this 14 day of August, 1894. 
(Signed) A. J. WALKER, 

Notary Public. 
Caption of above deposition overlooked. 
The deposition of W. M. Simpson, taken on the 14th day of 

August, 1894, between the hours of 8 o'clock a. m. and 6 o'clock 
p. m., at the office of A. J. Walker, in the town of Goodland, I. T., 
to be read as evidence in the case of Daniel McDuffee, Mary J 
Crawford, Amanda Jarvis, and Nancy McCarty, in the council of 
the Chickasaw nation or the proper council thereof. 

INDIAN TERRITORY, ) 

3rd Jud. Division. / ^ _ 

This day personally appeared before me James Frazier, who on 
oath deposes and says : 

I know that the above deposition is correct in every detail. 
his 

(Signed) JAMES x FRAZIER. 
mark. 
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Subscribed and sworn to before me this 13 day of Feb., 1895. 
(Signed) GEORGE H. TRUAX, 

Notary Public. 

Affidavit of Nancy McCarley. 

INDIAN TERRITORY, 
Chickasaw Nation, Pickens County, 3rd Judicial Div. 

On this the 29th day of August, A. D. 1894, before me, B. F. Red­
ding, a notary public in and for the 3rd judicial division, came in 
person Mrs. Nancy McCarley, of Ryan, Chickasaw nation, county 

of Pickens, Ind. Ter., and upon oath made the following 
55 statement, to wit: My name is Nancy McCarley. I live in 

Ryan, I. T., Chickasaw nation. My maiden name was Mc­
Duffee. My mother's name was Dorothy McDuffee. Her maiden 
name was Gillias. My mother died in Smith county, Texas, in 
Sept., 1877. My mother always told me that my grandmother on 
my father's side was a Chickasaw Indian, whose name was Nancy 
Frazier; consequently my father was of Indian blood. My grand­
father's name was Archie McDuffie and married the said Nancy 
Frazier. My father's name was Norman McDuffee and married my 
mother, Dorothv Gillas. 

(Signed)" NANCY McCARLEY. 

Subscribed and sworn before me, the undersigned, notary public 
in and for the 3rd jud. division, Indian Territory, at Ryan, Indian 
Territory, on this the 29th day of August, 1894. 

In testimony whereof I have set my hand and affixed my seal 
on the day and date above written. 

[SEAL.] (Signed) B. F. REDDING, 
Notary Public. 

Deposition of Amanda Jarvis. 

#RD JUDICIAL DIVISION, 
Ind. Ter. M ^^^^^^^^^^^^ 

On this day personally appeared before me, a notary public for 
the division and Territory aforesaid, Mrs. Amanda Jarvis, who, 
being sworn, says: My name is Amanda Jarvis ; my age is 49 ; I 
reside near Healdton, Ind. Ter.; my maiden name was McDuffee; 
my mother's name was Dorothy McDuffee; my father's name was 
Norman McDuffee; my mother's maiden name was Gillas; my 
mother died in Smith county, Texas; my father died in Shelby 
county, Ala.; my grandmother's name was Nancy Frazier, and she 
was a full-blood Indian ; she was a member of the Chickasaw tribe ; 
ray children's names are Sarah Ann Jarvis, Mary Jane.s Jarvis, and 
Nancy Jarvis. 

(Signed) AMANDA JARVIS. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 2nd day of Feb., 1895. 
(Signed) W. F. McKNIGHT, 

Notary Public. 
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56 

INDIAN TERRITORY, 
3rd Jud. Division, 

Deposition of J. S. Wolfe. 

ss: 

On this day personally appeared before me J. S. Wolfe, to me 
personally well known, and after being duly sworn by me on oath 
deposes and says: I knew Nancy Frazier in Miss,; this Nancy 
Frazier was a full-blooded Chickasaw Indian and had four children, 
as follows : Harry, Tom, Nancy, and Pollie. The last-named Nancy 
Frazier was the oldest daughter of the said Nancy Frazier in Miss. 
This Nancy Frazier, a daughter of the Nancy Frazier in Miss., mar­
ried Archie McDuffee, and they belong to the Big House clan. 
After they married they bad one child named Norman McDuffee. 

his 
(Signed) J. S. WOLFE. 

mark. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this the 20th day of Julv, 
1894. 

(Signed) G. W. ADAMS, Not. Pub. 

IND. TER. , 
3rd Jud. Div. 

This day personally appeared before me James Frazier, who on 
oath deposes and says: I know the above deposition is true in every 
detail. 

his 
(Signed) JAMES x F R A Z I / E R . 

mark. 

Subscribed and sworn before me this 13 dav of Feb., 1895. 
(Signed) GEORGE H / T R U A X , Not. Pub. 

57 Deposition of Mrs. J. M. Craivford. 

IND. TER. , 
3rd Jud. Div. 

FEB'Y 9, 1895. 

My grandmother was Nanc}r Frazier, who married Archie Mc­
Duffee; my father, Norman McDuffee, was the son of Archie Mc­
Duffee and Nancy Frazier; they had four children, as follows: 
Daniel McDuffee, Mary Jane Crawford, Amanda Jarvis, and Nancy 
McCarley. 

Ques! Was your father, Norman McDuffee, an Indian ? 
Ans. He was. 
Ques. What tribe of Indians was your father? 
Ans. Chickasaw. 
Ques. How old are you, Mrs. Crawford ? 
Ans. About 46 years old. 
Ques. Where do you live ? 
Ans. Ardmore, Ind. Ter. 

Ques. Mrs. Crawford, do you know this by your own knowledge? 
Ans. To the best of my knowledge this is correct. 

her 
(Signed) MRS. M. J. x CRAWFORD. 

mark. 

Certificate of Citizenship. 

OFFUCE OF COURT OF CLAIMS, CHICKASAW NATION, 
TISHOMINGO, I. T., Feb. Hth, 1895. 

DANIEL MCDUFFEE j 
vs. V Suit for Citizenship. 

CHICKASAW NATION, j 

This day this cause came on for hearing. After examining evi­
dence produced by the plaintiffs, the court was of the opinion that 
the following parties to the suit are Chickasaws and are entitled to 
the rights of Chickasaw citizens, to wit: 

Daniel McDuffee and his wife, Elizabeth McDuffie, and their 
children, R. H., Callie H., Mattie Lee, and Casey E. McDuffee ; J. M. 
Crawford and his wife, M.J .Crawford; Mrs. Amanda Jarvis and 
her children, Sarah Ann, Mary Jane, and Nancy Jarvis; Wil­
liam McCarley and his wife, Nancy McCarley, and their children, 
Sarah Ann, Eli, Sideny, Macon, Walter, Effie, Mary Earnest, and 
Nancy McCarley. 

Given under our hand- this day and date above written. 
(Signed) C. A. BURRIS, Chairman, 

W. H. BOURLAND, 
J. BROWN, Committee. 

Attest: R. H. NICHOLS, Clerk. 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of 
the original evidence as now appears in this office. 

Given under my hand and seal — office this the 3rd day of Julv, 
A. D. 1896. 

^ (Signed) L. C. BURRIS, 
[SEAL.] National Secretary, Chickasaw Nation. 

59 An act to establish a court of claims. 

SECTION 1. Be it enacted by the legislature of the Chickasaw na­
tion: That there shall be established in the Chickasaw nation a 
court, to be called the "court of claims." Said court shall consist 
of three judges, to be appointed by the governor, and who shall be 
men of mature age, not under forty years of age; and said court 
shall try all cases of citizenship of persons claiming Chickasaw 
rights, whose rights are disputed. 

SEC. 2. Be it further enacted : That the judges of said court shall 
open and hold their court at Tishomingo city, beginning on the 
first Monday in February, and the first Monday in August, 1895, 
and not to hold longer than twenty days in each term. 

SEC. 3. Be it further enacted : That the judges of said court shall, 
•5-476 
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at their first meeting, elect a chairman of said court, clerk, sergeant-
at-arms, and interpreter, all of whom shall receive four dollars per 
day for their services while actually engaged in holding court; to 
be paid out of the national treasury, out of any money not otherwise 
appropriated. 

SEC. 4. Be it further enacted: That the chairman of said court 
shall issue a certificate to the judges, clerk, sergeant-at-arms, and 
interpreter, certifying the number of days they served, which certifi­
cate, when presented to the auditor,—, who shall issue his warrant for 
the same, and said warrants shall be paid by the treasurer, agreeable 
to the third section of this act. 

SEC. 5. Be it further enacted : That all persons claiming Chicka­
saw rights shall be required to prove by at least two citizens of blood, 
Choctaw or Chickasaw, their rights as citizens, and by depositions 
duly authenticated. 

SEC. 6. Be it further enacted : That the chairman of said court 
shall be authorized to administer the oath to all witnesses in said 

court. 
60 SEC. 7. Be it further enacted: That the chairman of said 

court shall make a complete transcript copy of the proceed­
ings of said court in all cases to be submitted to the legislature/ 
for their approval or rejection, and their decision shall be final. 

SEC. 8. Be it further enacted : That all claimants shall be required 
to pay their own witnesses, and shall deposit with the chairman of 
the court fifty dollars to help defray the expenses of the court, and 
who shall pay the same over to the treasurer of the Chickasaw 
nation. 

SEC. 9. Be it further enacted : That the district attorney shall 
represent the nation in all cases; and the commissions of the judges, 
clerks, sergeants-at-arms, and interpreters, shall expire at the ad­
journment of the court, August, 1895 ; and all acts coming in conflict 
with this act are hereby repealed; and this act take effect from and 
after its passage. 

Approved Dec. 22nd, 1894. 
P. S. MOSELY, Gov. C. N. 

Recommended by— 

I, 0 . LEWIS. 

Attest: E. T. WAITE, 
National Sec'y, C. N. [SEAL.] 

61 The plaintiffs here offered iu evidence the following testi­
mony, which had been heretofore introduced before each of 

the aforesaid masters iu chancery over the objection of the defend­
an t ; and now, at the time of offering said testimony before the 
court, the defendant objected for the reason that the same had not 
been used before the Dawes commission and was now introduced 
for the first time upon appeal; which objection the court overruled, 
and the defendant then and there excepted and still excepts. 
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Before Honorable W. H. L. Campbell, master in chancery for the 
United States court, southern district of the Indian Territory, at 
Ardmore. 

DANIEL M C D U F F E E ET AL., Plaintiffs, 
vs. VTes 

CHICKASAW NATION, Defendant. 

Direct examination. 

) 
estimony. 

By ARTHUR WALCOTT: 

Plaintiffs' attorney reads application and all the affidavits in the 
above-styled cause. 

The defendant's attorney reads answer. 
Plaintiff- objects to the affidavit of H. F. Murray because said 

affidavit is not signed by Murray himself, but said affidavit was 
signed by some unknown person. 

COURT: Objection sustained. 

J. M. CRAWFORD. 

Q. How old are you ? 
A. I am about 65 years old. 
Q. How long have you lived in this country? 
A. About eight years. 
Q. Who did you marr}'? 

A. I married Mary J. McDuffee. 
62 Q. Where did you marry? 

A. In the State of Alabama. 
Q. When? 
A. In 1863. 
Q. Where did you come from to this country ? 
A. Cooke county, State of Texas. 
Q. How long ago ? 
A. Eight years. 
Q. Do you know B. F. Kemp? 
A. I do. 
Q.. Were you at Tishomingo when your case for citizenship came 

on for trial ? 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Did you have a conversation with B. F. Kemp at that t ime? 
A. I did. 
Q. State what that was, please. 
A. I asked him what he knew about the case, and-

Mr. JOHNSON : I object. 
COURT: Sustained. 

WALCOTT: I will ask you if you have not always been recognized 
and treated as a Chickasaw Indian and have enjoyed the privileges 
that any other Chickasaw Indians enjoy. 

A. Yes, sir; I have always been recognized as a citizen of the 
Chickasawr nation and have got permits from the Chickasaw gov-
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ernment, and have had orders to put men off my place from the 
Chickasaw nation on three different occasions, and at one time I 
brought one of the men in arms. 

Q. Did you ever get any permits? 
A. Yes, sir; I got permits five or six years ago. 
Q. Have you any of them now ? 

A. No, sir; I have none with me at this time, but Charley 
63 Carter has written me permits. 

Q. Has any one ever held land under you ? 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q, Who? 
A. Old man Bracketts held laud under me three years, and I 

was holding land by virtue of my being a citizen of the Chickasaw 
nation. 

Cross-examination. 

By W. B. JOHNSON : 

Q. Mr. Crawford, you say you filed your application before the 
Chickasaw committee? 

A. Yes, sir. 
Q. You say that you have received permits from the Chickasaw 

nation ? 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Have you ever drawn any annuity? 
A. No, sir; I have never drawn my annuity. 
Q. Did you not apply for annuity in 1892? 
A. Yes, sir; I did. 
Q. Did you draw any? 
A. No, sir. 
Q. Who was your partner in business here in this place ? 
A. Judge Carter. 
Q. How long did you live in Gainesville, Texas? 
A. Nine years. 
Q. You then moved to the Chickasaw nation ? 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Did you claim a right in the Chickasaw nation then? 
A. No, sir; for the reason that I had not established it at that 

time. 
Q. When were vou before the Court of Claims? 
A. In 1889. 
Q. Who was your attorney ? 
A. Judge Carter. 

64 DANIEL MCDUFFEE. 

Direct examination. 

ARTHUK WALCOTT : 

Q. How old are you ? 
A. I suppose that I am 56 or 57 years of age. 
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Q. How long have you lived here in this country? 
A. 14 years. 
Q. Have you moved away since you have been here? 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Where to ? 
A. The State of Arkansas. 
Q. For what purpose ? 
A. To educate my children. 
Q. How long did you live in Arkansas? 
A. For eight years. 
Q. Where did you go from Arkansas? 
A. I came back to the Chickasaw nation. 
Q. Who was your father? 
A. Norman McDuffee. 
Q. Who was your mother? 
A. Dorothy Gillas. 
Q. Where do they live? 
A. In the State of Georgia. 
Q. Have you been recognized as an Iudian ? 
A. Yes, sir; I have always been recognized as a Chickasaw In­

dian. 
Q. Did you apply to the Court of Claims? 
A. Yes, sir; a year or so ago; and I got judgment before said 

court. 
Q. You have always been recognized as an Indian since that 

time? 
A. Yes, sir; I haye been recognized as a Chickasaw Indian ever 

since. 
Q. Who did your grandmother marry ? 

A. A man by the name of Colbert. 
65 Q. Did she ever marry a man by the name of Leader? 

A. I do not know. 
Q. You are the principal claimant in this suit for citizenship, are 

you? 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. And you claim to be an Indian by blood ? 
A. Yes, sir. Nancy Frazier, my grandmother, was a one-half 

Chickasaw Indian, and that makes me a Chickasaw Indian by 
blood. 

Q. How much Indian was your father? 
A. He claimed to be an Indian, a Chickasaw Indian, and one-half 

blood. 
Q. Where did they live, your father and mother? 
A. They lived in the State of Alabama. 
Q. Was your father recognized by the people who knew him to 

be a Chickasaw Indian ? 
A. Yes, sir. Every one who knew him recognized him as being 

a one-half-blood Indian. 
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Cross-examination. 

By W. B. JOHNSON : 

Q. When did you move to this country? 
A. About 14 years ago. 
Q. State again how old you are. 
A. I am about 56 or seven years old. I do not exactly know. 
Q. Where did vou live before you moved to the Chickasaw na­

tion ? 
A. Smith county, State of Texas. 
Q. How old were you when your father died? 
A. I was somewhere about ten years old, perhaps a little older. 
Q. You say that you heard him say he was a one-half Chickasaw 

Indian? 
A. Yes, sir; he told me that he was Indian. 
Q. Plow long did you live in Arkansas? 
A. Eight years. 
Q. When did you file your application for citizenship ? 
A. Three years ago. 

Q. When was it rejected ? 
66 A. I did not know that it was rejected by the nation. 

Q. Who did you say was your lawyer? 
A. H. F. Murray. 
Q, He was your lawyer before the Court of Claims? 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Did you ever make any effort to draw any annuity? 
A. No, sir; I never made any effort to draw annuity money. 
Q. Where do you live now ? 
A. Near Healdton, Chickasaw nation, Indian Territory. 
Q. When did your father move to the State of Alabama ? 
A. I cannot say positively when he moved to Alabama. 
Q. Well, how old were you when he moved there ? 
A. I do not exactly know, but think was about 10 or 12 years 

old. 
Q. How old was your father when he died ? 
A. I think that he was about 35 or six years old. 
Q. What did he do ? 
A. He was a blacksmith. 
Q. When did you see your grandmother last? 
A. I saw her in Georgia; I do not know when, but some time—I 

just can't say the exact date. 
Q. When did you see your grandfather last? 
A. The same time that I saw my grandmother. 
Q. Where did you move to from Georgia? 
A. I moved from Georgia to Alabama. 
Q. Where did you live in Georgia? 
A. We lived near the South Carolina line. 
Q. How old were you when you moved down there ? 
A. I was about twelve years old. 
Q. Were your grand father and mother Indians? 
A. Yes, sir; they were Indians by blood. 
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Q. Did your father have any half brothers or sisters? 
67 A. No, sir; he did not. 

Q. Did he have any brothers and sisters? 
A. Yes, sir ; he had one brother and sister. 
Q. How old are you now ? 
A. I am somewhere about fifty seven or eight years old ; I just 

have to guess at it, as I have no means of knowing nositively. 
Q. WTho was your neighbors in Alabama? 
A. There was a man by the name of Jess Smootherns; he lived 

near us and was a white man. 
Q. Who else ? 
A. A man by the name of Alien Rouby; he lived near us and 

was a white man. 
Q. Were there any Indians at all lived near you? 
A. No, sir ; not right close to us. 
Q. WTho came west with you ? 
A. My brother. 
Q. When did your mother die? 
A. In 1874 or 75 . 
Q. Where did she die? 
A. In Smith county, State of Texas. 
Q. Did she come to Texas after you did ? 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Did your father own land in Alabama? 
A. No, sir ; he owned no land there. 
Q. How old were you when your mother died ? 
A. I was of age when she died. 
Q. Have you voted in Texas? 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Have you voted in Arkansas ? 
A. Yes, sir. 

Master's fee, $—; transcript fee, $—. 

68 DANIEL MCDUFFEE ET AL. 
vs. 

CHICKASAW NATION. 

Testimony of I. W. Folsum and E. C. McLaughlin, Taken before Me on 
the First Day of January, 1898. 

I. W. FOLSUM, being duly sworn, says he is 46 years of age; that 
he knows the reputation of Sim Casey, or Chickasaw Sim, as he is 
sometimes called, for truth and veracity; that it is good ; that he 
has held the position of clerk in a store for a number of years; that 
Casey is an Indian by blood. 

Cross-examined : 

He knew Casey in 1860; never lived very close to him ; he lived 
about 50 or 60 miles from him. 

E. C. MCLAUGHLIN, being duly sworn, says he is 58 years of age; 
says — is an Indian by blood ; that he knew the reputation of Sim 
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Casey, or Chickasaw Casey, as he is sometimes called ; that his, Sim 
Casey's, reputation for truth and veracity is good ; that he has been 
entrusted with the Choctaw funds to carry them from the Chicka­
saw to the Choctaw natiou ; that he has been dead two or three 
years. 

Cross-examined: 

Seventeen or 18 years ago he lived three or four miles from Sim 
Casey ; don't know that he ever heard any one say his reputation 
wTas good; don't know in the last 20 years what nation Casey lived 
in ; he saw him here not long ago. 

Subscribed before me 1st day of Jan., 1898. 
JOHN H1NKLE, 

Master in Chancery. 

69 In the United States Court for the Southern District of the 
Indian Territory, at Ardmore. 

DANIEL M C D U F F E E ET AL. "j 
vs. Vln Equity. 

CHICKASAW NATION. 1 

Testimony taken before John Hinkle, master in chancery, at law 
office of Johnson & Johnson, in the town of Ardmore, I. T., on the 
11th day of January, 1898, appearing A. C, Esq., for claimants; 
W. B. Johnson, Esq., for Chickasaw Nation. 

W A L K E R MARTIN, being duly sworn, upon oath testifies as fol­
lows : 

Direct examination. 

By Mr. CRUCE : 

Q. What's your name? 
A. Walker Martin. 
Q. What's your age, residence, and occupation? 
A. My age is 72—in my 73d year. 
Q. Where do you live? 
A. I live in Durwood. 
Q. What's your occupation? 
A. Farmer by trade. 
Q. Were acquainted with Simpson Casey in his lifetime? 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. When did you first become acquainted with him ? 
A. In 1860. 
Q. What acquaintance did you have with him ? 
A. I was in Doaksville a week in the fall of '60. Sim Casey was 

then at w7ork in R. M. Jones' store in Doaksville. I was in the store 
every day while there. I saw him there the first time I saw him. 

Q. What opportunities have you ever had since then of 
70 becoming acquainted with him or learning his standing as a 

man ? 
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A. Well, I see Sim Casey during the war; he was in Geu'l Pul-
som's regiment, second Choctaw regiment. 

Q. Who was, Casey ? 
A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Did he have any command of the company ? 
A. He had a company in the same regiment. 
Q. How long was he in the war? 
A. I think he was in the war from start to finish. 
Q. Did }rou have an opportunity of being with him or not often 

during the war? 
A. I saw him frequently; was with the Choctaws a good deal of 

the t ime; I was dispatched for General Pike when he was in com­
mand, and for General Cooper; I saw him often. 

Q. When is the last time you have seen Sim Casey ? 
A. I saw Sim Casey—it was about two years ago. 
Q. Do you know whether he is now dead or alive? 
A. He is dead, as I understand. 
Q. Do you know wThere he was living when he died ? 
A. About two and a half miles from Goodland, Choctaw nation, 

north. 
Q. Were you with him any during the net proceeds payment? 
A. Was with him about a month every day. 
Q. How long since was that? 
A. That net proceeds was paid out six years ago, I believe ; it was 

when they were paying out at Atoka. • 
Q. From what acquaintance you had with him, do \-ou think you 

are able to state what his general reputation was for truth and ve­
racity in the neighborhood where he lived ? 

A. It was good as far as I know. 
Q. Do you think you knew what it was? 
A. I think it was good. • 

Q. Did you ever hear it questioned? 
71 A. Not until this citizenship business came up. This citi­

zenship was the first time. 
Q. Who did you hear question his reputation? 
A. Ben Kemp. 
Q. What were the moral habits of this man when you knew him ? 
A. Just as good as any one's. 

Mr. JOHNSON: I don't see what this has got to do with it. It is 
not admissible. 

Mr. CRUCE : You can save your exceptions. 
Mr. JOHNSON : What good would that do? That has been the prac­

tice all the way through. There has never been any testimony 
introduced that would be admitted in any other court. 

A. As far as I know. I have known Ben Kemp over 40 years, 
and my knowledge of Ben Kemp and Sim Casey is no parallel at 
all. Sim Casey was the best—head and shoulders over him. 

Q. Well, do you know how far this town of Goodland is from 
where Ben Kemp lives, at Tishomingo? 

A. I guess it is 50 miles ; maybe over that. 
6—476 
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Recross-examination. 

By Mr. JOHNSON : 

Q. You do not know whether he is regarded by the Chickasaws 
as a negro or not ? 

A. No, sir; I do not; he is evidently a Chickasaw. 

Excused. 
Stenographer's fees for taking and transcribing above and fore­

going testimony of Walker Martin, $4.00. 

I, John Hinkle, master in chancery for the southern district of 
Ind. Ter., do certify that the testimony of Walker Martin was taken 
before me in the above cause on the 11th day of January, 1898. 

(Signed) JOHN HINKLE, 
Master in Chancery. 

Plaintiffs here closed their testimony and rested their case ; where­
upon the defendant introduced the following testimony, to wit: 

75 Whereas, during the February and August sessions of the 
late citizenship committee of the Chickasaw nation in 1895; 

said committee did, without any authority of law, issue and give out 
certificates of citizenship to Mary Ann Byrd and family, Evans Hill 
and family, U. S. Joines and family, Mattie Chapman and family, 
J. H. Lee and family, W. M. McCarty and family, Daniel McDuffee 
and family, and Mrs. Amanda Jarvis and family; and, 

Whereas, said committee was not authorized or empowered by 
any law of the Chickasaw nation to issue and give out such certifi­
cates to any person or persons whatsoever ; but the law creating said 
committee and giving it power to hear the evidence adduced in such 
citizenship causes required that said committee, at the adjournment 
of the August session, should send up to the legislature of the Chick­
asaw nation, which was to convene on the first Monday in Sept., 
1895, a complete report of the proceedings of said committee, which 
should be subject to the approval or rejection of the legislature, before 
the same should have any legal course; and, 

Whereas, the said legislature did reject all claimants allowed by 
said committee; and, therefore, the certificates now held by the 
above-named parties and their families are worthless from the be­
ginning and is of no legal effect: 

Therefore, be it enacted by the legislature of the Chickasaw nation, 
that the certificates of citizenship now held by the above-named 
persons and their families,—they being United States citizens—be, 
and the same is hereby declared null and void, and of no legal effect 
as against the Chickasaw nation, they having been issued unlawfully ; 
and said parties for whose benefit the same was issued, are hereby 
declared to be non-citizens of this nation, and are not entitled to any 
rights in the Chickasaw nation as citizens thereof; and said certifi­

cates are hereby declared not entitled to any credit or legal 
76 force in this nation, and this act — take effect from and after its 

passage. 
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Amended in the senate by inserting the names of J. M. Crawford 
and his wife, Mrs. M. J. Crawford. 
/Approved Oct. 28, 1 8 9 5 , / 

Recommended by— 
M. V. CHEADLE. 

Attest: L. C. BURRIS, Nat'I Sec'y. 

P. S. MOSELY, Governor. 

I, L. C. Burris, national secretary of the Chickasaw nation, do 
hereby certify that by virtue of my office I am custodian of the laws 
and records of the Chickasaw nation ; that I have examined the 
above and foregoing, and know that the same is a true and correct 
copy and transcript of an azt of the legislature of the Chickasaw 
nation, as is shown by the records in this office. 

Witness my hand and seal of office on this the 15th day of Octo­
ber, A. D. 1896. 

(Signed) L. C. BURRIS, 
[SEAL.] National Secretary, Chickasaw Nation. 

77 In the Matter of the Application for Enrollment in the Chick­
asaw Nation of DANIEL MCDUFFEE et al. 

Affidavit of B. F. Kemp. 

INDIAN TERRITORY, 
Chickasaw Nation, ss. 

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally ap­
peared B. F. Kemp, who, being duly sworn, on oath deposes and 
says : My name is B. F. Kemp ; I am a Chickasaw Indian by blood, 
and am 63 years of age; I came to this country from the State of 
Alabama in the year 1837; I have been district —, county judge, 
senator, legislator, and have held other important offices under the 
Chickasaw government. I am familiar with the Chickasaw by 
blood and intermarriage. I am well acquainted with Nancy Fra-
zier during her lifetime ; she is a grand-aunt of mine; she had only 
two children—one named Winchester Colbert and the other Edward 
Leader; Colbert is dead, but Leader is still living. I have never 
heard of the claimants being Chickasaws by blood or claiming to 
be until they presented their claim before the citizenship commit­
tee, and they were afterward rejected by the legislature on account 
of the insufficiency of the testimony. The said J. S. Wolfe, who 
testifies for the applicant, is a negro, whose reputation for truth and 
veracity is bad and not entitled to credence bv any one. 

(Signed) B. F. KEMP. 

Subscribed and sworn to before me on this the 26th day of Oc­
tober, A. D. 1896. 

[SEAL.] (Signed) W. M. LUCAS, 
Notary Public. 
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78 Affidavit of Jonas Wolfe. 

INDIAN TERRITORY, "I 
Chickasaw Nation, \ 

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally ap­
peared Jonas Wolfe, who, being first duly sworn, deposes and says: 

My name is Jonas Wolfe. I am a Chickasaw Indian by blood, 
and am 65 }'ears of age. I came to this country from Mississippi 
with the Chickasaw Indians. I have been governor of the Chicka­
saw nation, and have held other important positions under the 
Chickasaw government. l a m w^l acquainted with Isaac Williams 
and a negro known as Isaac Wolfe. I have known them for about 
30 years. I am also well acquainted with Sam Perry. I am in­
formed that each of these men have made a great many affidavits 
in support of claims to citizenship in the Chickasaw nation, and I 
state upon my oath that each of these men are unworthy of belief, 
and would, in my opinion, for a small sum of money make any 
kind of an affidavit that was written out for them. They are unre­
liable in every respect, and their general reputation for truth and 
veracity is notoriouslv bad. 

(Signed) JAMES WOLFE. 

Subscribed and sworn to before me on this the 22nd day of Octo­
ber, A. D. 1896. 

G. W. ADAMS, 
Notary Public, [SEAL.] 

79 Affidavit of H. F. Murray. 

INDIAN TERRITORY, \ 

Chickasaiv Nation, f 

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally ap­
peared H. F. Murray, who, being first duly sworn, on oath deposes 
and says: My name is H. F. Murray; I am 77 years of age, and 
have resided in the Indian Territory ever since 1854, and have been 
in the Chickasaw nation since 1870. I am a practicing lawyer in 
the Chickasaw courts. V[ am well acquainted with Isaac Williams 
and another negro kuowhus Squire Wolfe, or J. S.Wolfe, and have 
known them for ten or twelve years. I am informed that each of 
these men have made a great many affidavits in support of citizen­
ship claims in the Chickasaw nation, and 1 state upon my oath 
that each of these men^are unworthy of belief, and would, in my 
opinion, for a small sum of money make any kind of an affidavit 
that was written out for them; they are unreliable in every respect, 
and their general reputation for truth and veracity is very bad. 

(Signed) H. F. MURRAY, 
Per McM. 

Subscribed and sworn to before me on this the 22nd day of Octo­
ber, 1896. 

[SEAL.] (Signed) G. W. ADAMS, 
Notary Public. 

80 In the Matter of the Application for Enrollment in the 
Chickasaw Nation of DANIEL MCDUFFEE et al. 

Affidavit of B. F. Kemp. 

ss 
INDIAN TERRITORY, 

Chickasaw Nation, 

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally ap­
peared B. F. Kemp, who,being first sworn, deposes and says: My name 
is B. F. Kemp. I am a Chickasaw Indian by blood, and am 63 years 
of age. I came to this country with the Chickasaw Indians in the 
year 1837 from the State of Alabama. I have been county judge, 
district judge, member of the legislature, and have held other im­
portant offices in the Chickasaw government. I knew Nancy Fra-
zier 40*years ago, and she was the only Chickasaw that I ever knew 
by that name; she had two children, one by her first husband, 
name- Winchester Colbert, and the other by her second husband, 
whose name was Leader, but I have forgotten his given uame. I 
have never heard of or known of a Chickasaw by the name of 
McDuffee, neither have I heard of a Chickasaw by the name of any 
of the other applicants herein. I am well acquainted with Nancy 
Frazier, and I am satisfied that if any of these applicants had been 
descendants of her or even related to her I would have known it. 

(Signed) B. F. KEMP. 

Subscribed and sworn to before me on this the 27th day of Octo­
ber, A. D. 1896. 

(Signed) W. M. LUCAS, 
Notary Public. 

81 In the Matter of the Application for Enrollment in the Chick­
asaw Nation of . 

Affidavit of B. F. Kemp. 

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally ap­
peared B. F. Kemp, who, being duly sworn, on oath deposes and 
says: 

My name is B. F. K e m p ; I am a Chickasaw Indian by blood, 
and am 63 years —; I came to this country from the State of Alabama 
in the year 1837, and I have been district judge, county judge, sen­
ator, legislator, and have held other important offices under the 
Chickasaw government. I am familiar with the Chickasaws by 
blood and intermarriage ; I was raised in Panola county, Chickasaw 
nation, about six or seven miles from Island Bayou, and lived there 
from the year 1849 up to about ten years ago ; I am a sou of Jack-
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ACT 0? T.TttXSXtiBOTI. SMKRA^ WtiOUBB 

BAKKKB. 

'as, 

I 

if l«Wf isaua 

cltisanaJtip to . l y f MX 

..i>% J , • t U y , " , oO&rty a n d 

Hjf| £a»ial Haduff: yf Mid Mra. A 

•vis fend family; ana, 

11 Ai; I Mi vuthoriz^d 

dr aagpiwnad L LOW 

fcra rast s u c h c<%riifiofei**e U m gftfttCra o r 

•.-©nsifri&tsooverj ' ha l a w ftr«*ting . ? o m i t t a * 

:. •' i t ptwrnr • arldaaa* ad<f»aad in 

nncti ciiiaanaiiip a«&«**t ra^uirad th i sale 

41our . AX^ugt aasciao nhould *atai 

la tfca l e g i s l a t u r e of* Hm Chlo&tuM Un, which 

to aawaisa 6n th« f i r s t ay in atfoar, 

5f a aoKplafca roport of fefea praeaadisga of aaJ4 

ecaaaitta*), v?hich should bo aaHtfaart to i>> rova l 

or r t j i i te» - i l«g la l* tur« before ihe g l i i should 

»ro#; said, 

bar**** ft* ftaid l«gl«Xaiur« did re jec t a l l claim­

ants &" lowad Id ®*feialttaa, ;md, tharafara , 

ca r t l f t oa t aa now held b,/ the afetfV named part iaj ; 

the i r famlXlftfl a r t worthless fraai Uaa b* . nd 

arc of no l aga l af?»ct# 

Tharefor*! B© I t t*a*%ad by the l e g i s l a t u r e of the 

Chiokas&w ff&tion tha t tha c a r t i f i e a t a a of citi&onship 



now held "by the above named per&oiui aai t h e i r famil­

i e s , ".h.v:; .-r united s t a t e s c i t i z e n s , be and the 

MMM i t hereby 3a ad declared nul l and void, 

or IT i n s t the Ghideas t ion , 

i f htwin--: been iaawed unlawfully and s a l 

.e bmefi bha same was Issued, are hereby 

declared to be non-ci t izens of th i s na t ion , and M* 

en t i t l ed to cny r i nn t s in the ChlakMM* Hat ion as 

pistons theraof, w I c e r t i f i c a t e % a r t hereby 

declared no- e n t i t l e d y c r e d i t or l ega l force 

in th i s na t ion , &% to take M i t t ft*M end 

. er i t • p a r a g e . 

Jgjpreval October 3d| :v .-•&, 

? . '. .; i i • el. r, 8 ere rno r . 

At tes t : .::*. G« Bu-r is , ta« 

I hereby oertifjc this atoove i s & true and 

cor. y o ' o r ig ina l aot now on f i l e fen 

of f ice , 

CrJy«n under ag hand and o f f i c i a l seal t h i s , 

lit." \r;-:,, ;-, v.. 1034 
~. C* Burr la , 

eereta ilckan . &n« 
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>odland 

mmttj In the cas Janinl , I v s . 

Chickasaw Nation, l a ^ich he s t a t e d tha t he in 72 

yearn old and l i v e s a t Woodland; tha \0§ Nancy 

" r a z i - r in '.he S t a t e '., . : i to 

he a Ml by "blood; tha t she had ive 

c h i l d r e n , by name, Henry I ' r az ie r , om r a z i e r , 

ITanojr ^ r a z i ;*, o i l y T r a i l e r , and Char les ' r a z i e r ; 

t h a t they l i v e d i n " 'el low i • County. Wifne.; 

says I f hnea A • IfoDuf ''ay, and tlMlt Arohia 

marr ied T]av. y , th ar Df Mansy Craz i e r 

a fo resa id} t h a t Archie had s e v e r a l c h i l d r e n , one »f 

>.m was Herman IIcDuffeyj t h a t ila r r and 

he r descendants er I <:i to the f saw r a t i o n in 

about 1835. " e do not t h inh t h i a tes t imony i s t r u e , 

and. you are d i r e c t e d to i n v e s t i g a t e i t care-" i l l y , 

and i n c o r p o r a t e your r ind inns i n an a f f i d a v i t aworn 

and subscr ibed to by William "impson. 
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•M Bllo^'-nrr Tlotio . 

Re* ort 

To Mnnsfield, icLlu ray '• Oornish. 

I - '• truel eel to see v ' i l l i«n SJj^MA, at 

ntf H Terr i tory . I '*'*nt to 0oo41pnd 

Ulld Lr d e a d . 

(Vj/r/Lvxivj^'-^^ 

it 



Daniel McDuffie, et al.» 

vs. No. 4, lodgment, Southern District, March 14, 1898. 

Chickasaw Nation. 

This day tbis cause coming on to be heard uju»n the pleadings, 

exhibits, proof, Master's report and exceptions filed the-etc by the 

Chickasaw Nation, and tie court u p n the hea ing of said case is of h 

the opinion, and there-ore adjudges that the report of the Master 

filed heaein he and Ahe same i3 hereby confirmed in all respects« 

'aid the court, being sufficiently advised up'n U» whole case: 

Doth order, adjtfge and decree that %}%•-. plaintiffs and applicants 

Daniel McDuffey, R. H. McDuffie, Cailie H. Mcduffie, Matie Lee 

McDuffie, Cassie K. McDuffie, Mrs. M. J. Crawf rd, Amanda Jarvis, 

Sarah Ann jarvis, Mary Jane Jarvis, Nancy Jarvis, Nancy McCarley, 
James McCarley, Rli McCarley, Sindey McCariey, Macon McCarley, 

Sarah McCarley, Waitor McCariey, Effie McOarley, Mary McCarley, 

Earnest McCarley, and Nancy McCariey, ea -.h and all be admitted as 

members of the Chickasaw Tribe of Ink*** Indians By blood, and 

that Miey have all the rights, privileges an! immunities as such. 

It is further ordered, adjudged and decreed that the applicants 

Elizabeth McDuffie , wife of Daaiei McDuffie, J. M. Crawford, huso ad 

of M. J. Crawford, M. W. McCarley, husband of Nancy McCarley and 

Oeorge Jarvis, Husband of Amdnda Jarvis, eah and all be admitted as 

members of the Chickasaw Tribe of Indians by intermav,ria{a , and that 

they each have ail the rights, privileges and immunities as such. 

The clerk of this court is hereby ordered to transnit a cerified 

copy of this judgment to the Commission to the Five 0ivilized7rj.be* 
alxladians 

of Indians, which said Commssion , is hereby directed tc place the 

names of each and al of thr above aneccadt named parti as upon the; 

roils of citizenship made out by it for the Chickasaw Nation, as men*-! 

ters of said Chickasaw Tribe of Indians in the way and manner as he re 
i 

in indicated. 
to this judgment the Chickasaw Nation excepts. 

http://0ivilized7rj.be*
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(Copy) 

IHDIAN TFRRITCKV, 
CJPTTRAL TUSTRTCT: 

Vy ana la R. ? . Hamilton. ¥y P.O. i s South IfcAlaatar 

I . T. 

T lenaw Squire Wolf. I waa acquainted with h ie raputation 

for truth and varec i t y i n and around Ardmore, and In fac t In 

the Southern "District of tha Tnd. Tar, That raputation wa a 

had. 

He waa a standing witnaaa in c i t i z e n s h i p matters; he 

would awear to any atatemant, and he took money for so swear­

ing. He made giving testimony in c i t i z e n s h i p cases h i s buai-

nesa. I would not b e l i e v e him on oath. 

(Signed) R# F # Hamilton. 

Subscribed and sworn to before me on th ic 27th day of 

July , 1905. 

(Signed) D. A. Richardaon, 
ST!AL Notary Publ ic . 



SUMMONS. 

United States of America, 

Indian Territory, • 

Choctaw and Chickasaw Citizenship Court. 

The President of the United States of America, 
T 6 t h e U n i t e d S t a t e s M a r s h a l for t h e I n d i a n T e r r i t o r y , S o u t h e r n D i s t r i c t , 

'• 
G R E E T I N G : 

•m 

You are hereby Commanded to Summons P. S. Mnsefey, Governor of 

the Chickasaw Nation, to answer on behalf of said nation, in twenty days after the service* of this 

summons upon him, as Governor of said Nation a complaint in] Equity filed against the 

Choctaw and Chickasaw nation in the Choctaw and Chickasaw Citizenship Court, in the Indian Ter-

ritory, at Tishomingo, ' b y Daniel McBuffie , e t a l , 

and warn him that upon his failure as said Governor to answer on behalf of said nation, the 

complaint will be taken for confessed, and you will make return of the summons instanter; 

And you are further commanded to notify said P. S. Moseley Governor aforesaid, 

that the papers, files and proceedings in the case ot Daniel---MoDU-f-fie, a t a l , 

File No 4 in the District Court for the S o u t h e r n District of the 

Indian Terr i tory , has been transferred to the Choctaw and Chickasaw Citizenship Court, and that 

the certificate of the clerk of said court for said S o u t h e r n District, Indian Terr i tory , 

has been attached thereto. „, 

W I T N E S S the Honorable Spencer B. Adams, Chief Judge, 

Walter L. Weaver and Henry S. Poote, Associate 

Judges, and the Seal thereof, at South McAlester, 

Indian Terr i tory, aforesaid, this 2 4 t h 

day of March A. D., 1903. 

JOJuM JM-JXAJMLj^ Clerk. 

By mP^J.SMjX^^ Deputy. 
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South McAlester , Ind ian T e r r i t o r y , June 26 , 1903. 

Danie l KcDuffie, e t a l , 

v s . T. No. 77 . sou thern D i s t r i c t No. 4 . 

Chickasaw Na t ion . 

LETTER 0? INSTRUCTIONS. 

TO 

The office files of the papers in the 

above entitled cause are herewith delivered, and 

you are directed to make an investigation thereof 

along the lines indicated, returning the same, to­

gether with your report and exhibits attached thereto 

at the earliest practicable date. 

The applicants in this case seem to rely 

upon the certificate of the so called "Court of 

Claims of the Chickasaw nation", of February 14, 

1895, in which the opinion is expressed by the Co irt 

that the applicants are entitled to the rights of 

Chickasaw citizens. The action of this Court 

was in accordance with an Act cf the National Legis­

lature of the Chickasaw Hation, approved December 

22, 1894 and required "That the chairman of said 
Court shall make a complete transcript copy of the 
proceedings of said Court in all cases, to be sub-



mit t ed to the L e g i s l a t u r e , fo r t h e i r approval or 
r e j e c t i o n , and t* e i r dec i s i on s h a l l bo f i n a l . " 

By an Act of t h e Nat iona l L e g i s l a t u r e of 

the Chickasaw Nat ion , approved October 28, 1895, 

t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n of these c la imants for c i t i z e n s h i p 

in the Chickasaw Hat ion was r e j e c t e d . 

The c la imants then appl ied to the Dawes 

Commission under t he Act of Congress of June 1 0 , 

1896, and were by judgment of November 1 0 , 1896, 

den i ed , "Prom t h i s judgment, appeal was taken to 

the United S t a t e s Court f o r the sou the rn D i s t r i c t of 

the Indian T e r r i t o r y , which Court by judgment of 

l!arch 1 4 , 1898 r eve r sed the d e c i s i o n of the Commiss­

ion and admitted the a p p l i c a n t s as Chickasaw c i t i z e n s . 

The p e t i t i o n fo r wr i t of e r r o r to the 

Choctaw and Chickasaw C i t i z e n s h i p Court inc ludes 

a l l the persons mentioned in t he judgment. 

CLAIM 0? APPLICANTS. 

The a p p l i c a n t s c l a im t h e i r r i g h t to 

admission and enrol lment as c i t i z e n s of the Chickasaw 

Nation by reason of t h e f ac t t h a t they are d i r e c t l i n ­

ea l descendants of an a l l eged f u l l blood "hickasaw 

woman of the name of Nancy ? r a z i e r , who had a 

daughter named Nancy F r a z i e r , who mar r ied a white 

nan named Archie IIcDuffie; t h a t they had a c h i l d 



named Norman 7!cT"uffie, v.ho was the fa ther of the 

pr incipal applicant in th i s case. 

The record wi l l further show that these 

app l ican ts , or a t l e a s t the older members of the 

family came from the Fas tern par t of Georgia to Ala­

bama when ch i ld ren , and moved from Alabama to Texas 

about the year 1874 or 187 5, where they resided 

u n t i l t h e i r removal to the Chickasaw Nation, Indian 

Ter r i to ry , which was apparently only a shor t time 

before the appl icants T&AQ t h e i r p e t i t i o n to the 

t r i b a l au tho r i t i e s of the Chickasaw Nation, 

Our theory of t h i s case i s tha t the app l i ­

cants are not the descendants of any person by the 

name of Nancy ? raz ie r ; are not possessed of any 

Chickasaw blood, but if they did have a s t r a i n of 

Indian blood, i t i s probably Creek as the section 

of the country from which they or iginated was very 

near the center of the old Creek Nation in Georgia 

and nouth Carol ina. 

I t i s our further opinion tha t they have 

only assumed Nancy Prazier as t he i r ancestor since 

removing td the Indian t e r r i t o r y , and tha t by impli­

cation endeavored to obtain recognit ion as members of 

the Chickasaw t r i b e , as co - rea l t ives of the ? raz ie r 

famil}' of Chickasaws. 



The exhibi ts attached to the pe t i t i on to 

the Dawes Coimiiission were the exparte a f f idavi t s and 

deposit ions presented to the Chickasaw t r i b a l author­

i t i e s a t the time of the subnission of t h e i r 

p e t i t i o n f,o the so ca l led Chickasaw Court of Claims 

and consis ts of the deposi t ions of iffln. Simpson, 

Nancy J'cCarley, .Amanda Ja rv i s , J . 5. Wolfe, and 

Mrs* Kg J . Crawford, a l l of whom with the exception 

of Simpson and Wolfe were pa r t i e s applicant to the 

p e t i t i o n to the t r i b a l a u t h o r i t i e s , and are a l so claim­

ants in th i s case . 

Win. Simpson, in h i s deposit ion of August 

14, 1894 t e s t i f i e s that he i s seventy-two years 

of age and l ives at Goodland, Indian Terr i tory ; 

laiev/ Nancy Frazier in Miss i ss ipp i , who was a Chick­

asaw Indian by blood; she had fi*te chi ldren , and 

^ives t h e i r names, including one g i r l named jJancy. 

Tes t i f i e s tha t ::ancy married Archie LIcDuffee, and they 

had several children, one of whom was named Norman 

rcDuffee, and that Gorman KcDuffee married and had 

ch i ldren , but does not reca l l t h e i r names. 

This deposit ion is en t i re ly ex-par te . The 

questions propounded to the witness are leading, and 

A. J . Walker who .̂ook the deposi t ion s t a t e s tha t no 



other person was present at the examination. 

Our Kr. Kic^ardson has heretofore been 

d i rec ted to obtain an a f f idav i t from t h i s witness , 

and on June 1, 1903 repor ts t ha t he is dead. 

'Taney KcCarley and .Amanda Ja rv i s in 

t h e i r ex-parte a f f idavi t s make p r a c t i c a l l y the 

same a l l ega t ions ; t h a t the i r mothers name was 

Dorothy KcDuffie, and that her maiden name was Gi l las ; 

tha t the i r fa thers name was ITorman KcDuffie, who died 

in Shelby County, Alabama; grand mother name was 
rTancy Prazier ; and tha t she was a fu l l blood Indian 

and a member of the Chickasaw t r i b e . These affidav­

i t s are but a r e i t e r a t i o n by the appl icants them­

selves of the a l l ega t ions contained in the p e t i t i o n . 

ITo inves t iga t ion thereof is necessary-

J . S. Wolfe, in h i s exparte a f f idav i t of 

July 20, 1894 al leges f i a t he knew 'Taney Frazier 

in Niss i s s ipp i ; she was a fu l l blood Chickasaw 

Indian and had four chi ldren, one of whom was named 

IJancy, who married Archie UcDuffee, and tha t they 

had a chi ld named lioraan HcDuffee. 

Our theory of t h i s a f f idavi t i s that i t i s 

en t i r e ly fraudulent; tha t the aff iant had absolu te­

ly no knowledge of the facts alleged to have been 



testified to by him, and that if he ever did exe­

cute such an affidavit, it was without arc/- knowledge 

of the contents thereof. 

We believe this affiant is the negro 

Squire \7olfe, referred to by James Wolf, H. F. 

Murray and 3. ?. Kemp "whose reputation for truth 

and varacity is bad, end not entitled to credance by 

anyone". 

You will endeavor to secure from this 

affiatt, if he is living a statement or counter 

affidavit relative to his knowledge of the descend­

ants of ITancy Crazier, leading him through each gener 

ation, and having him fully testify to all the 

descendants of ̂ ancy Frazier whom he knew. If he 
T 

i s unable to so t e s t i f y , interrogate him tarn as to 

hispersnnal knowledge and acquaintance with these 

ItcEuffie appl ican ts , and have him t race t h e i r ances­

try back to the i r great grand mother. 

Mrs. M. J . Crowson, also one of the a p p l i ­

cants t e s t i f i e s that her grand mother was ITancy raz-

i e r , who married Archie IlcZXiffie, father of Gorman 

I'cBuf^ie, and tha t they had four ch i ld ren . This 

statement i s but a r e - i t e r a t i o n of the a l l ega t ions 

in the o r ig ina l p e t i t i o n , and no fur ther inves t iga­

tion thereof is necessary. 

file:///7olfe


The deposit ions "before the p a s t e r in Chan­

cery at the t r i a l of the cause on appeal before the 

United s t a t e s Court for the southern D i s t r i c t of 

the Indian Ter r i to ry cons is t s of the testimony of 

M. J . Crowson, San1»1 KePwf Im and Daniel IIcDuffie, 

both of w\ ora are p a r t i e s appl icant , and i s nerely to 

t he i r remaininc u n d i s t u r b e d while holding t r a c t s 

of land in the Chicl<asaw Nation. 

In the cross examination of Daniel IIcDuffie 

by the a t torney for the Chickasaw Nation, he s t a t e s 

that h i s fa ther died when about t h i r t y - f i r e or t h i r t y 

s ix years of age; tha t he was a black smith in the 

State of Alabama; that he , the witness l a s t saw h i s 

grand mother in Georgia, and tha t when he, the wi t ­

ness l ived in Georgia, i t v/as near the south Carolina 

l i n e . 

There also appears in the record the t e s t i ­

mony of several witnesses re la t ive to the t r u t h and 

va rac i ty of one Sim Casey, or Chickasaw Sim, and i t 

i s impracticable to understand the purpose of t h i s 

discussion, as there has been no evidence introduced 

by any witness of t h i s name. 

There are also included in the record the 

af f idavi t s of B. 7. Kemp, Jonas Wolf and H. F. I'urray 



r e l a t i v e to the u n r e l i a b i l i t y to "be placed in the 

testimony of Isaac Williams, Squire Wolf, (or 

J . S. Wolfe), and Sam Perry . 

B. F. "emp also t e s t i f i e s that he knevr a 

Chickasaw Indian named Nancy Frazier some for ty 

years ago who had two ch i ldren , one by her f i rs t 

husband, Winchester Colbert , and one by her second 

husband, whose name was Leader; never heard of or 

known a Chickasaw by the name of ItoJJuffie, nei ther 

has he heard of a Chickasaw by the name of any of the 

appl icants in th is casej was well acquainted, with 

ITancy Fraz ie r , and i s s a t i s f i ed that if any of these 

appl icants had been fer descendanto, or r e l a t ed to 

her he Would have known i t . 

I t i s probable that these appl icants are 

now l iv ing in the Chickasaw Ration near Ardmore, 

and you may be able to obtain some information r e l ­

a t ive to t h e i r ancestry from c i t i z e n s of the Chicka­

saw Nation residing in that v i c i n i t y . 

I t is somewhat d i f f i c u l t to def in i te ly 

ins t ruc t you as to the proceedure in cases of t h i s 

charac te r . We fee l reasonably sure that th i s claim i s 

absolutely fraudulent , and without the l e a s t vestage 



of t r u t h . 

The pr inc ipa l witness now being dead, i t 

would be impracticable to rebut h i s testimony except 

on the general proposi t ion of h i s en t i re u n r e l i a b i l ­

i t y . 

You wi l l proceed in the obtaining of such 

information as in your opinion may be of mater ia l 

benefi t to the ITatiora a t the t r a i l of t h i s cause, 

bearing in mind the, necss i ty for thoroughness, and of 
hub IibiIf 73 

giving as l i t f i e . p o s s i b i l i t y &? the charac te r of 

your mission. 

Yours very t r u l y , 



I CH0CTA1 •' ' I '.. ' CTIZENSHIP COURT, 

) 
D i . ie l I cDuff i« a t a l . , ) 

?:. ' f f s , ) PETITIO • 

itiOXkt Cu^A BV^tAM^ ) 

v 
Cor.. re, Daniel McDuffla, Ma&tia 

V'' V ' ' * 

Lee Tls, ':ancey Jerri a, 111 ..caarley, Sarah 

, ' a* . . . BDufflt, Cassle E. McDuffie, 

Sarah Ann Jarvia, teu^cay tfeCarlay, Sidney McCarley, Walter 

McCarlay, Carries, irlay, Callie . MeDuff ia, Mrs, . J. 
v/ ^ • y 

Cn . 'vis, Jamea McCarley, Macon McC rley, 

Kff Parley, Pancey Hc'Carley, Blizabath . iffl», J, 

Crawfoj . . .'eCarl . , and Georga Jarvis, and raj pec tf ully 

reprasant a irt, that they aacfi >f ... . ire 

p prior to September 9th, 1896 , residents 

of - ..:.'• 1 >ryj th - are each rind 

all citizen;.- Chiakasaw Nation OT Tribe 

Indian*J tv. . I and all applied to the ( . >n to 

the Pive Civ! . Tribes fOX Ilment as citizens . (ban 

of ... or Tribe of Indiana; 1 ..id caaiiiis-

sion hea J.on} aa petitioners ••ere by the 

Judgmant of .said. Comal • 1 denied citizenship 1 . rat 

as . or said Chic. Tribe of I a* 

That thereafter, and .7 i thin the time prescribed by 1-. a 

these pat it • . at of the Cow I on 

rj , • 1 1 30 • I for 

the ooutaern Dlstri . aa, at Ardmora, 

wherein said I ai a caase styled Daniel I/cDuf-

fie at al., vs. -. i' . n, •...•- • • rred four (4). mrm fter. in said United States Court for the 



2 

aforesaid, Daniel WcDuff L#, vs. Chickasaw -ation, -and 

said court therein determined, and adjudged these petitioners, 

sa;-. d all, to be citizens and jaeahe.rs of the Chickasaw Nation 

or Tri f Tndius, and ordered and directed the said Commis­

sion to Lr< ;vilized Tribes to place the naaes of petition­

er.; 11 of ci; ?f the Chickasaw Nation or 

i . ' reof; which said judgment was 

rendered b . record in said court on the J if* 

Petitioners further she*? that by its Judgment rendered on 

the 17th day of Dec . ', 19021 in a /led The Choctaw and 

.or f} . I m s , plaintiffs, vs, J, !• 

Riddle et al. , ...s, this court at I 3 decreed all 

, ........ of U&e .;ai . . . c in tiie 

Ina •'. r,- Lttl to Oltiztnshlp 

citizens of the ChOCt id Chickasaw Nations upon ap taJ from 

the commission to the hive hvilixed Trioes, ths ton defendants 

.ed in said causa in this court, as well as those wao had OQO 

in . . themselves parties to said a , id all judgments 

rendered Ln . ,vor o . -. larly . ,ted, null and 

vol . 

These petitioners : f were not parties to saict 

s tit or cause of The Chocta . icKas ...ions, or Tribes 

of la kintiffs, vs. • . . Lddle, et al., defendants* 

Th. te co net have the power or jurisdiction 

under /.-.•. ... evideno* in said cause, to ... .side • 

vacate the Ju - . fore - i n the United States 

court for t . el strict, of . , Territory, adjudging 

arid establishing the citizenship and membership of these petit-



the Southern District of the Indian Territory, at Ar&more, de­

clare.. . fudging these petitioners to be citizens and 

members of said ChicLas a .r Tribe of I, t% in 

any way affected, set aside or avoided by said Jud 

this court. 

These petitioners, a - however, that tfi I -:i as 

this go Vt • -red its | .nd decree setting aside 

all t ante of said United ea Court for I -.Lnern 

District of the l.- Let rreto 

are similarly situated to the media i lid 

cause of T. . . • ., ••.•••'.- s of \ . , 

; v,... . .. Ld Le at •.*.L« , defendants, the Co,' .on 

to t •••• i " • • ^d. T~ibes a a ad frill deny to these 

petit! ... > all the rights an vil©g«a as such members of 

.;.. j t ti' 'fl will be d̂ iiied 

and deprl? • prIvilegee of m 

tiOB Lftftf unlessthe files, 

•;rs, and proceedings in • ... I . 4| atyled D 

.: ...tiff, vs, Chieka ation, in the said 

United 81 •• I district of 

tore| G t for f .• ;her pro* 

tit loners, still Insisting upon 

their rights id cit LcK ati..n 

or Tr: ' t waivin of the rights ad­

judged and decreed bo uider and by virtue of said' 

ju< t of said United - • District 

of the Indian Terri 1 'try, at •'. •;, in said cause 8o« 4, atyled 

Daniel ".cDuffio vs. Chiokae • ttion, most respectfully pr 



the Indian TerrLtory, to certify and transfer to this honorable 

court all the files, papers and proceedings in said cause) No.4, 

styled Daniel McDuffie et al., vs. Cnickasaw Nation, in said 

court; that the Principal Chief of the ChOOt . Ltloa the 

Gov ,.o? the Chickasaw -ation be cited, and serve. i pro­

ves herajQht, ?to the end t ;.ese petitioners be I hlished 

or— 

i n , md not rapriv ita as memb r i n Q h. izens of 
... 

aAid Chidcaaa r i b e of In.dians f suad for a l l o ther 

t i f s t • Sj£e$> -r r e l i e f in the 
V 

KJ^XJ *"" C-ŷ v A^ 

A 
'. 



. i D 0 ; ; . ' " ' . ' • ' ' 

. a l , Fl I '.' *fsjj 

) 

r ) 

t,r:. ) 

oo n >T t) pi ' rtt" ffc ' nd "•' 1 h u t 

entering t s i r bi b sause, except For th< j • >f th i s 

• -ion, .... . i • -j righti that ey lawf out 

Lnsi Lng . . '" '• V" sub) It ' ng th : 

. out;. ally protesti"1 ; ; Inst •' Ion of ••, upqr 

in i i i r " i i I ' ' i ' ~ n ~ i i " idi - - v f i "* - I T r • i " ' i T - r ~ i n 

, " ' " 1 ^ ' ' " ' ' • • • • ' • • - •• •-••••• - | ••'••••••• j- •- , : :• J . ' • " ' i - | r n 1 r i T t i r 

dismissing "same 

* ^Uc-^ ^ * / 



In t h e Choctaw and Chiclcasaw C i t i z e n s h i p Court , s i t t i r ip; a t 

Tishomingo, i n the Southern D i s t r i c t of t h« Ind ian T e r r i t o r y . 

Panj e l KeDttffie, et a l . , 

v s . No. 77. 

Choctaw and Chickasaw Nation**, 

DBCKEE OF COURT. 

On t h i s day of , 1904, t h i s cmise coming 

on f o r f i n a l dec in ion , the sane having h e r e t o f o r e been mil i t t e d 

upon t he law tad the evidence , and the Court "be i n s r e l l and 

s u f f i c i e n t l y advised in t h t N 1 ses, doth f ind t h a t t h e 

p l a i n t i f f s , Daniel McBuffie, Ma t t i e Lee KcBuffie, AffiftffHIt J r r v i s , 

ITsncy J a r v l s o r Nancey J a r v i s , E l i KcCsrley, Sarah McCarley, 

Itary HcCarley, E. E. JlcDuffie, C r s s i e ? . Mchuffie, Scroll Ann 

J. r v i s , l.Tanco-y McCarley c r Nancy licCr-rley, Sidney McCarley, 

V/alter ?TcCarley, Ea rnes t McCarley, 8*1X1 • K. McBuffie, I,!. J . 

Crawford, Mary Jane J a r v i s , Janes ItcCarley, Uacon hcCr r l ey , 

Mffic KcCnrlcy, hancey McCarley or Nancy McCarley, E l i zabe th 

IIcDuffie, J . Wk vrawford, M« f« McCarley, and Geor,-;e J s r v i s , 

are not e n t i t l e d t o he deeraed c r dec la red c i t i z e n s of the 

ChicftMMkV ITaticn, c r t c enrol lment as such, or t o any r i g h t s 

whatever flcwi.v: therefrom. 

IT IS XflEMOKm OFJF.lvilD, /JDJUIXMX iuTD J&CKEED t h a t the 

p e t i t i o n cf t h e p l a i n t i f f s , Danie l i lcDuffie, Mat t i e Lee IIcDuffie, 

Ananda J a r v i s , Nancy J a r v i s or Nancey J a r v i s , H I McCarley, 

Sarah McCarley, Mary kcCar ley , R. H. McPuffie, Cass ie 1 , McBuffie, 



11. J . Crawford, Mary Jane J a r v i c , Jai/iesj HcCarley, Ilacon hcCar ley , 

E f f i e McCarley, V t M # McCarley or Nancy McCarley, E l i z a b e t h 

MaDuffie, J . IU Crawford, M. W. McCarley, and George J a r v i s , 'be 

denied , and t h a t they 'be dec l a r ed not c i t i z e n s of t he Chickasaw 

Nat ion , and not e n t i t l e d t o enrol lment as such c i t i z e n s , and not 

e n t i t l e d t o any r i g h t s whatever f lowing therefrom. 

Chief Judge* 

A I M C 1 a t e Jttdg e • 

As pioci a t e Jwd ge • 
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tmXAS TERRITORY, 
CWTRAL M0TRICT* 

Before Htj the undersigned &KthorltPi fWritOjITj appeared 

ISx. ^ov« Hi M# l^yrri$| s^rro'v-*'.?,; known to n*, an<? who &ft--T f i r»* 

t>y n*> iNting fiulj nworn, deposes aw Mfl 

" ; nam*'- i s B# M* I - r r i a , I I pMTI of age, and a member 

of the Chi-'-Vaeaw Tribe o:f Indiana by tt#ii| ancl have liyed among 

the Tribe All -'"r l i f e ; N m bean governor of HM GfciftlQMMPJ JfetiM, 

and f i l l e d HM9 of the minor o>Tiee« under the Chickaeaw Government; 

wa» f i t of %m (NnflalmtMan 1 DM '•Atoka Agreement*, 

through no* lone, continued servicer f i r ;ny popple, I have become 

aimufint^d, and fan i lure wi I • ,'* 1 I t i a t M j ami wit}, I 

eo-eal lcd Chickasaw SVaedmenj X m a Ml I farmer, <ok 

r a i a e r at and near Tifihominro; I h - 1 Peter and, •Squire* 

Wolf nine® ny childhood* and know that they were looked npon 

'•Standing witne&tse»* in C.1t,|«®rmhip 0*8*0 and other cause®; X have 

known then to t e s t i f y in Muklf of, ani for people, and that I 

wan fu l ly aware they could not know anythinr agouti and tha t 1 

knew t h a t they could he handled m& caused to •*•«? to eui t t 

person, handli nn» for a monrsy coneiderat ion, and having known 

then a» X have, 1 would not b«li*v* the», or e i the r of them, on 

oath, where e i t h e r expected or had an opportunity to-receivo r * 

mm or a t i i n 1fci e re for • * 

Suhacriheu am* »Wom 10 before ly of July A»2)f 1903* 

, j I nraffj, 
] 35 5 a rV^u^l x a. 
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Southern Judicial District, 

Before me tlits undersigned au thor i ty , personally appeared 

M« V# Cheadls, | M t -v, MM Hftif f i r H llQP ^® 

sain** duly M i ! depose* ana says* 1 am f<wrty»fiv ... XM o f a g e , 

a saember of the Chickasaw Trihe i f Indians by hlood, and hare 

held M M ? important pos i t ions under the Ooyervinent o:f the Chi oka* 

saw Nation* to-v»it: hare represented HM K&tion as Counnel, and 

represented th* Katies as Commissioner in making t2x**Atofca A r̂**?* 

ment* ; heen a meafeer for a masher of yearn of this Senate a 

House of Hopresentativoa of the Chickasaw l e g i s l a t u r e , and am a 

lawyer hy profession, and in performance of the a** dvtiea haws taat 

and | n i i ajfual l iai Lt.1i. nearly a l l the e i t i aana of the gklltoa* 

•aw Hation. 0 and alao fhtalnai* Vlroodzaan* X wall Mat **::qulr<s 

Wolf and Pater Wolfe, two oli: Chickasaw dnfm, and MM M M 

them well a l M i ehildheedj and. hawe Hired within tw i rcll&e of t h i 

home of •Squire* Wolrf e for MM H or 40 years : I M l each of 

their general reputa t ions la ! -ranities in which they l i v e , 

for t ru th and ve rac i ty , and that thaj are known a® "Standing i t -

nesses*, M i ttMrt can eas i ly lM p f M N i to t e s t i f y fa lsely 

in any case for a money considerat ion: I know that In \ Mf •&$ 

when the inooyqaotsat \ Ml made, ooth Squire* Vilfe - .;ter 

Wolfe MM to ne and proposed to me to f i r ad A thei r teatinoT , 

or *vi*Onosf to support m elftii for ap wife, awing H confi­

dence | a Uwir evidence, I refused tl en, a"hd I t --p-

pened that another atfpiiavnt aattured the el&l*? and ; wade th i s 

l a t t e r applicant a descendant of the aa^e person whoa they were 

wi l l ing to awe&r was the anoeator of my wife, and. hy HM I t a l t a M f 

and t he i r proposit ion to ma, made fey vfeft ant' tM applicant I r a t M f 

and s i s t e r , wh.ieh nreryhody knew to he false* In short X would 

not ta*&i#ve "Squire* Wolfe or Peter Wolfe on oath wherein they had 

an, i n t e r e s t or expected to havr. And I ha TO t n t l M to hoth of 

them where they have hmn witnassaa in c i t i zenship and incom­

petent cases and asked ;-.ther. how they were paid for the i r s e rv ices , 

http://Lt.1i


and they told ma that tho contract irrrartaMy waa that th«y 

wer*? to toft a cash foe In advancet Ml In the «vent HM lippXloattt 

for §ttli ip9 or luiH^piti • irtafeliifc Ur claim 

tlifsy « § n to h:\x • I Uaal £**, odnaoqu&tttlj from whnt 2 know 

of f 1 0 testimony, thfty 

haYe • ONMNN 

^ ?V V, Owadlo 

Subscribed and I " July, A.r» 

1901. 

Notary Public'. 



U S A * TERRITORY, 
Souther:; Jud ic i a l D i s t r i c t* 

Before a@t the and -' • , partei -oared 

?*ok ftH ifflHiniftfj, >.o »ft>er fir < 

l i b t i ^ I • y name ic Jack Alexander, 

I ?m th i r l ; ; - (37) j old; I : -"'hickasaw SVeedaan, arts! 

l i v • • | l « ! i | I m a ner chant and ffcnear) 1 Ml pre t ty wall 

acquainted w,UXi a l l LetaMM Cit tMaa and Ohio 'rfl^dwn, 

I |MH ' olfe i l l I M t r Vtolffa* I wai« raised by "Squire • 

Welfe from childhood If mnhood. 1 WM hrouf I ia 

house, and, under h t i control , I also know Peter Welffcj nearly na 

well as 2 Know I j f j f r t 1 $'olfe, iMMBM Ml l ived villi us the most of 

the time cluri:;- I k feat Fetor and Squire ?/olfe 

w#re saught af ter "by elaiaajnAa to ChX kaaaw clti&enahlp ami other 

l ike causes, a** eta isae»« I hava h#ord iark 

t i n e | «.. ' he was swearing for the mon*y ^\ora waa in i t , 

ami as to ol< '*̂ # ĥo>-. I calle< & Pa* , I tevt 

t i n awl a- i l i M i for hia sake, a t the ra ta he was 

awearimr fo I . l a ta t rouble; but 

uuoh in and payinfl 3ala a l i t t l e money, 

aal i tffeaxrita la e*14 i Laheat and leapt 

i t qp i m t i l hia da*tfc| Ml evta when ha t f fa l ra Wolfe) wan on Ms 

death bad ami af ter ll I oath apae chief* I uncoaacious 

theae alatwaata k^pt t e n i a ! ftiaflrit** al l ttft 

out and would eat an ttt« badat&e ami ftfroXtiX) tak»- hi** hand with 

their hand and forcibly have him louYh ' nf then '.. - ] would 

®lgn h i s name, and nake h i s mark, and would leave a l i t t l e mon«y 

there for h lo family, iMWtai a» they did tha t Squire Wolfe wa» 

tha i dylnr*; a t I -.••-e thine thin was going on w*th Squir t ^o l fe , 

eld nan Sam Pnrry§ another eld Chickasaw yreudnan* had an office 

eatabliahad In an out house belonging to Squire ^©Xfe, wfciar* he 

waa constant ly making &ueh a f f idav i t s and receiving mon#y for i t , 



and in t h i s way both 1 M Perry, Peter Wolfe, and Squire Wolfe 

mad« gMtf MM* off sucb claimants to at l l iaaal l lpj Ml incom­

petent claims. I further s t a t e tha t tartag t1 1 l a s t t«n yeara 

of Squire Wolfed l i f e hi» mind h**d l i M I badly l&pared* ha was 

child t ah* and very feeble, ami allowed hl&aalf to be handled in 

any way for money. He tm® boon dead now for aorta 4 or b years* 

and «•»» aince h i s death* I have re< ^ivad money from ios« of tT-ese 

SlaUanTte in payment for the a f f idav i t s he had mda for MMj I had 

charge of hie e s t a t e (af ter h ie death) to *orca extent.* ^hi le he 

was on hin death bed and in a dyinf. condi t iM* those claimants 

'k®vf: lHrtXPtug kin &o» u n t i l X* mail one day,ran them off the 

pla in m l tfilM Of Bam Parry* e offieam I t i f f knew tha t old nan 

Poster Wolfe was handled l a the same wac; -for Ma atoney in i t for 

him* I hare been paid fear, myself for aOMO Mall claimant** to ga 

and procure aff idavits ' from Old lady CuniBh*ma^ tubby* and 'when I 

went to her , and mtntm fay tousinaas known to h*tr alia MM aha would 

not awoar for tie* par t i es for no larsa than f i f t y do l la rs* and 

#25#0O in advance; but i f the p a r t i e s would, pap tha t then aha 

would swear for them, §i I returned and M M ftp ropert« I was to 

receive $10*00 for ray t rouble , but aa I i l l not gr*t Mi afffidavits* 

1 snl9 pet five dol lars* consequently I M § od as know that a l l 

theses a f f idavi t s MPV falaa and were only ftvea or made for the 

M i | paid far i to Uba witaeMMf Ml I v a t t l not bel ieve 

ei*:" or or sap of • I M M and believe there la as t m t in 

any Of t m* Itwafc elftpl? alattalaa to M to a^e how ftqpliro Wolfs 

wâ i swearing for a l i t t l e MH ailal pay him* 2 can 

fur"' ' a few MBM ^ho arawled upon x£x death bed of Squire 

Wolfe when he was dying** and touehed Ma | I i fell hand a?aS IhM 

SlgBO name, and and a Ma raark, and went away contented, with 

h i s affidavits—* If the Barm w«w neeessary*"»and I we 11 know Mat 

Squire Wolfe, Baja Perry, Peter Wolfe, ana Ml old wonan* Cernlah* 

s»» tubby and Ike llHrnfiff M M the witnesses sau$h for wh^a the 

testimony deetrad was to be purchased, and where money was used J 
• 



WWld harfi no f a i t h or oortfidenc .1- t ru th of t he i r a f f lcavl ta 

fcaoauao I do a t t bal ia** tharo l i any t ru th in then, and I aw 

aa t i s f i ad the claimants knew i t tooj hut ••>;•- a f f idav i t s aervod 

ft tl • t i l I B0 

ftlftt« .. / i r * V o l f e t » d e a t h and siincft Ihe olalm&ntc have 

af f idavi t Mir m r a a a t e i Hbay have retoraed f-

noney for the fwi t l j %tt$i thanka4 to Squire far- Use affidavits*. 

Same of th is monoy I wa$ taa true tad to apply I t &• N a f i t a of 

Squire N U I * I family| and gome I was to pay orar to fan Perry* 
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DANIEL McDUEFIE says he is 56 years old and has lived here 

14 years; moved away once to the State of Arkansas to educate his 

children, lived in Arkansas eight years, then came back to the 

Chickasaw nation; is a son of Norman McDuffie and Dorothy Gillas 

who now lives in the State of Georgia; affiant has been recognized a 

as a Chickasaw Indian; applied to the Court of Claims a year or 

J two ago arid got judgment before said court; his grandmother married 

a man by the name of Colbert; affiant's grandmother, ̂ ancy 

Erazier was a one half blood Chickasaw Indian; they lived in the 

State of Alabama; affiant moved from Georgia to Alabama; was about 

12 years old at that time; there v/ere no Indians living near them 

in Alabama; affiant voted when he lived in f«xa« Arkansas. 

B. E. KEMP says he is a Chickasaw by blood, 63 years old; 

came to this country from the State of Alabama in 1836, Names the 

various offices he has held. Knew Nancy ^razier, she was a great 

aunt of affiant's; she had only two children, one named Winchester 

Colbert and another Edward Leader; Colbert is dead, but Leader is 

still living; affiant never heard of the present applicants being 

Chickasaws or claiming to be, until they presented their claim 

before the committee and v/ere afterwards rejected by the legislature; 

J. S. Wolfe who testified in their behalf is a negro whose reputa­

tion for truth and veracity is very bad; affiant never heard of any 

Chickasaws by the name of McDuffie; is sure if these applicants 

were descendants of Nancy Erazier affiant v/ould have known it. 

SSCCS.SS 

CONCLUSIONS. 

There is nc testimony to support the contention of claimants 

that they are descendants of Nancy Erazier. The testimony of those 

Chickasaws who did know >iancy -prazier show conclusively that ap­

plicants were not and could not have been her descendants. 
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ren, whose names were Henry, Tom, Nancy, Polly and Charles Frazier. 

Affiant knew Archie McDuffie, who married Nancy McDuffie the daughter 

of Nancy Frazier; Archie had several children by his wife, one of 

whom v/as Norman McDuffie. Nancy Frazier and her descendants emi­

grated to the Chicksaw nation about 1835 or 1837. 

NANCY McCARLEY says she lives at Ryan, I. T., her maiden name 

was McDuffie; she was the daughter of Dorothy McDuffie; her mother 

died in Smith county, Texas in September 1877; her mother always 

told her that affiant's grandmother on her father's side v/as a 

Chickasaw Indian whose name was Nancy Frazier; her grandfather's 

name v/as Archie McDuffie; affiant's father's name was Norman 

McDuffie. 

AMANDA JARVIS, same as above. 

J. S. WOLFE sayt he knew Nancy Frazier in Mississippi; that 

she was a full blood Qhickasaw, and had four children, to-wit: 

Henry, Tom, Nancy and Polly; Nancy married Archie McDuffie; they 

had one child named Norman McDuffie. 

J. M. CRAWFORD says he is 65 years old; has lived in this 

country eight years; that he married Mary J. McDuffie in Alabama 

in 1863; he came here from Cook county, Texas; has always been 

recognized and treated as a Chickasaw Indian; has had permits from 

the Chickasaw government and held land under same; once filed an 

application for citizenship before the Chickasaw Committee; has 

never drawn annuity money, applied but was refused; Judge Carter was 

his partner in business; affiant lived in Gainesville, Texas, nine 

years; Judge Carter was affiant's attorney before the Court of 

Claims. 
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DANIEL MCDUFFIE, ET AL. 

The application of Daniel McDuffie, his wife, children and 

grandchildren, state that they filed with the Court of Claims of 

the Chickasaw nation a petition setting up the fact of their citi­

zenship, and that at the Feberuary, 1895, term of said court, after 

hearing the testimong the court issued them a certificate of citi­

zenship , which is given in words and form; that since the issuance 

of said certificate the applicants have enjoyed all the rights and 

privileges of citizenship; that they are residents of the Chickasaw 

nation; that shortly after they were admitted by the court their 

case with others was sent to the legislature of the Chickasaw 

nation and was passed upon adversely by said legislature, without 

reviewing the testimony or being advised of the facts. Applicants 

state that they are Chickasaw Indians by blood, being direct desend-

ants of Nancy Frazier a Chickasaw Indian woman, who lived in the 

State of Mississippi prior to the removal of the C ickasaw tribe 
present Chicksaw nation 

of Indians to theAIndian Territory. Asks enrollment. 

Application denied by the Dawes Commission; appealed to the 

United States Court for the Southern District; referred to W. H. L. 

Camobell, Master in Chancery, who having heard the testimony, rec-

omemnded that the application be denied. The case was afterwards 

referred to John Hinkle, Master in Chancery, who found that all 

the applicants were Chicksaw Indians and entitled to enrollment. 

Applicants were all admit/.ed by the Court. 
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AFFIDAVITS BEFORE THE DAWES COMITISSION. 

W. M. SIMPSON says that he is 72 years old, and lives near 

Good land, Indian Territory; he knew Nancy Frazier in Mississippi, 

and knew her to be a Chickasaw jndian by blood; she had five child-
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